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          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO: Good morning.

          3  This meeting of the General Welfare Committee is

          4  called to order.  I want to welcome everyone here.

          5  We have an opportunity to make some history here

          6  today, and I want to thank everyone here for being a

          7  part of it.

          8                 And we are going to start with a

          9  quick overview presentation, so that we are all on

         10  the same page about the bill we are considering

         11  today, Intro. 114-A.  Yes, we are going to -- we are

         12  going to stall for a moment, while we get the

         13  PowerPoint presentation to work.

         14                 While we are waiting, I would like to

         15  welcome Council Member Chris Quinn and Council

         16  Member Bill Perkins.

         17                 Is that blurry?   Commissioner

         18  Gatling, is that blurry or not?  All right, then my

         19  eyes are blurry, okay.  Thank you, Commissioner, I

         20  know you are a fair arbiter of all things.

         21                 Good morning, again, this time for

         22  sure.  Welcome to this meeting of the General

         23  Welfare Committee.  We want to talk today about

         24  Intro. 114- A, and I just want to spend a few

         25  minutes going over this bill, why it is so
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          2  necessary, and what it will achieve for New York

          3  City.

          4                 First of all, the simple purpose of

          5  the bill is to extend all rights and benefits of New

          6  York City Domestic Partnership automatically to

          7  marriages, which are not recognized by New York

          8  State and to the Domestic Partnerships and Civil

          9  unions from other jurisdictions.  Now this is a

         10  fundamental step forward in the recognition of same

         11  sex relationships, and has, I think, real national

         12  ramifications.

         13                 This bill would ensure in New York

         14  City, people from other places who have decided to

         15  spend their lives together, will not have to go

         16  through some additional bureaucracy and additional

         17  hoops to share that commitment legally.  That

         18  whatever has been recognized elsewhere would

         19  automatically be recognized here.  And I want to

         20  especially single out and thank Council Member Chris

         21  Quinn for her work in bringing this bill to us

         22  today.  I think she deserves a round of applause.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  She is very

         25  modest, she does not want applause.
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          2                 Now, let's start with our current New

          3  York City Domestic Partnership Law.  As you can see,

          4  very fundamental rights and benefits are part of

          5  this law.  Health insurance for City employees,

          6  hospital visitation rights, bereavement leave, child

          7  care leave, awards to City employees killed in the

          8  line of duty, succession rights for Public Housing.

          9                 Chris Quinn and I, and Tom Duane, and

         10  many others participated about 10 years ago in a

         11  Task Force during the Dinkins Administration, which

         12  led to the issuing of the Executive Order by Mayor

         13  Dinkins, which was the first big step forward for

         14  domestic partnership rights in New York City.

         15  Dennis de Leon is here today; who was also extremely

         16  active in that effort as the Human Rights

         17  Commissioner during the Dinkins Administration.

         18                 And I remember many, many a day on

         19  the other end of the Hall, spending time with Chris

         20  and Tom and others, and talking about the immense

         21  opposition we expected, and we, in fact, regularly

         22  encountered, when it came simply creating an

         23  Executive Order for Domestic Partnership.  And as

         24  everyone knows, and we will talk about it in a

         25  moment, there had been very, very unfortunate
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          2  efforts on the national level to make it harder, not

          3  easier, for same sex coupled to live together.

          4                 But I am very heartened today as we

          5  sit here, knowing that this bill commands tremendous

          6  support, to see how far we have come.  And I think,

          7  Chris, knows what I mean, to think about the dangers

          8  and the problems we faced 10 years ago, and to see

          9  the much more positive environment, particularly in

         10  this Council over that period of time, so some step

         11  forward.

         12                 Now let's talk about Domestic

         13  Partnerships and Civil unions elsewhere, which is

         14  what we want to recognize through this bill.

         15  Vermont, California, and Hawaii have passed

         16  pioneering legislation in the area of domestic

         17  partnership, and obviously, Vermont, in particular,

         18  has taken the greatest step forward with civil

         19  unions.  About 60 localities nationwide have

         20  established domestic partnership laws.  Now Vermont,

         21  again, has gone farthest, the law specifically

         22  grants couples "all the same benefits, protections,

         23  and responsibilities under the law as are granted to

         24  spouses in a marriage."  And that is the strongest

         25  language in the nation, and that language, for
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          2  example, would gain automatic recognition as a

          3  domestic partnership here in New York City under our

          4  law.

          5                 At the same time, it is very negative

          6  national trend that the Federal Defense of Marriage

          7  Act, we all know it is something that is very

          8  troubling to all of us.  In 1996, the certain

          9  players on the national scene feared that states

         10  would begin to legalize same sex marriages led to

         11  the Movement for Defense of Marriage Act, which was

         12  specifically meant to deny states and localities the

         13  opportunity to grant those rights.  Now this leads

         14  to an important constitutional issue, and we will

         15  speak about this in the course of the hearing.

         16                 The Constitution speaks very clearly

         17  on the issue of full faith and credit.  And if you

         18  accept the idea that states are supposed to

         19  recognize the laws of other states, it leads to a

         20  very interesting question of whether DOMA was not an

         21  explicit effort to inhibit the rights of states to

         22  recognize each other's laws. Specifically, Congress

         23  used, by passing DOMA, Congress used the full faith

         24  and credit clause to expand the power of states to

         25  deny recognition of other states' laws.  So in the
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          2  view of many of us, this was, in fact, an extremely

          3  backward situation, an inappropriate situation of

          4  Congress undermining the intent of the Constitution.

          5    Unfortunately, despite very vivid constitutional

          6  objections, DOMA was approved by an overwhelming

          7  majority of both Houses of the Congress.

          8                 Now if you look around the country at

          9  the State level, since DOMA was passed nationally,

         10  about 35 states have taken advantage of the

         11  unfortunate flexibility and opportunity that DOMA

         12  gave them to deny recognition of same sex marriages

         13  from other jurisdictions.  So it is very, very

         14  troubling to see what was first done nationally has

         15  now spread to states, by the way, similar

         16  legislation that DOMA has been introduced in New

         17  York State since, although, thank God it has not

         18  gone anywhere.

         19                 Now the current New York State law,

         20  New York State law does not permit same sex

         21  marriages or civil unions per se.  And same sex

         22  couples have not been able to get Marriage Licenses

         23  in New York State.  People, who are living in same

         24  sex unions in other places in the country and in the

         25  world, do not have a guarantee in New York State of
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          2  recognition of those unions.

          3                 Of course, in New York City the

          4  situation is, at this moment, better because someone

          5  new to New York City could go and register a new, as

          6  a Domestic Partner.  But, again, think about the

          7  implicit bias and the implicit message that sends.

          8  Where if you are married in another state, you come

          9  to New York, you are automatically recognized as

         10  married in New York.  If you are a Domestic Partner

         11  in another state, and you come to New York, you are

         12  not automatically recognized as Domestic Partner.

         13  That is a double standard, and it is simply

         14  unacceptable.  And that is what we seek to change

         15  with this law.

         16                 Lastly, New York has often been a

         17  leader in the area of Civil Rights and Human Rights,

         18  this would, once again, take us a step forward by

         19  recognizing civil unions, marriages, and domestic

         20  partnerships from other states.  We will set, I

         21  think, the whole nation on a path towards greater

         22  recognition.  By blazing this trail, New York will

         23  send a message that all relationships are deserving

         24  of respect, and there should not be a double

         25  standard.
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          2                 So whereas, sometimes we have been

          3  part of a movement with other places nationwide,

          4  this time we would really be taking the first great

          5  leap forward and helping to set a pace for the whole

          6  nation, and hopefully, for other countries around

          7  the world.

          8                 So that is the basic history of what

          9  we are doing today.  It is an opportunity for all of

         10  us to really leave a profound mark, not only on this

         11  City, but on other cities, other states around the

         12  country.

         13                 And with that, I am pleased to call

         14  forward our first witness, and could we have some

         15  light?  This bill sheds light, but in addition, we

         16  need more light here in the Chamber.

         17                 Yes, let me, before Commissioner

         18  Gatling comes up, let me - -  Wow! Let me recognize

         19  the blinded Chris Quinn, again, was one of the real

         20  driving forces behind this bill.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you, a

         22  little gel on those lights would be more flattering.

         23    But nonetheless, thank you. I want to thank the

         24  Chair for holding this hearing quickly, and for

         25  working with us on the schedule, we kind of wanted
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          2  to have this hearing during LGBT Pride Week, so that

          3  worked out well.

          4                 Actually, this bill was originally

          5  the idea of Gifford Miller, before he was the

          6  Speaker, a year or so ago, when he was just a

          7  regular old Council member like the rest of us.  So

          8  this is actually a bill that is a Miller/Quinn bill,

          9  and I think it has a better chance of passing now

         10  that he is the Speaker.  He has something else on

         11  his schedule, at the moment, that he could not move

         12  around, but does hope to join us at a point at the

         13  hearing today.

         14                 Recently, in the City Council, we

         15  held a hearing in the Select Committee on Lower

         16  Manhattan regarding domestic partnerships, how

         17  domestic partners in same sex couples were being

         18  treated in the horrible aftermath of September 11th.

         19    And you know, when I think when Speaker Miller and

         20  I first conceptualized this bill a few years ago,

         21  the idea was to take injustice out of the

         22  Administrative Code, to have the Code as equal as

         23  possible.  And to, in New York City, push the

         24  envelope as far as we could.  We cannot do marriage

         25  on a City level, but to do everything we could to
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          2  make relationships as equal as possible, because it

          3  is the right thing to do.  And hopefully, because it

          4  would raise the bar and push the state and other

          5  governmental entities to follow suit, and that is

          6  incredibly important in and of itself.

          7                 But after September 11th, and after

          8  our hearing on all of the problems that domestic

          9  partners have had, this law is even more important

         10  than we could ever have imagined it would have been

         11  two years ago, when we first started discussing the

         12  bill.  You know, the only same sex couples who stand

         13  really any chance of being treated equally by the

         14  Relief Funds are those who have a Domestic

         15  Partnership Registration Form to present.  And you

         16  know, it is tragically, entirely possible that

         17  someone could have moved to New York from somewhere

         18  else where they were registered, gone to work, been

         19  in the City a very short period of time, not had the

         20  opportunity to re- register and then had their

         21  relationship be completely erased by the government

         22  and all of the Relief Funds, and have their family,

         23  you know, and obviously, the money here is

         24  important, I'm not going to not say that.  But we

         25  have heard people talking about not getting the urns
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          2  and the ashes that other family members got.  People

          3  not getting the flags.  You know a woman who lost

          4  her partner who was the kindness of a Red Cross

          5  worker, who literally stolen an urn and gave it to

          6  her, who could have lost her job.

          7                 So this bill is important in ways

          8  that we could never have imagined.  And you know,

          9  the law reads, in New York City for Domestic

         10  Partners, there are actually, you have to live

         11  together for a year, before you can register.  Not

         12  for nothing, you could meet somebody in Los Vegas,

         13  whatever, go down the hallway get married very

         14  quick.  I am not saying, but whatever.  So, but the

         15  law says that you have to live together for a year.

         16  Does that mean you have to live together in New York

         17  City in the five boroughs? So if somebody, it could

         18  be that somebody moved from Connecticut and was

         19  waiting a year before they could register, and then

         20  the tragedy would happen and they would not have

         21  been recognized post 9/11.  Or they might not, if

         22  their partner was hit by a car, be able to visit

         23  them in a Health and Hospital Corporation Hospital,

         24  or, you know, their child might be taken away.  I

         25  mean this is important in symbolic ways and in
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          2  pushing the envelope ways, but in real life, the

          3  worst moments families can be in ways.  And I hope

          4  that when we pass this, other places, other cities

          5  and municipalities seek to also push the envelope as

          6  far as they can, which I believe will only further

          7  shed light on states and the federal government who

          8  are so clearly moving in the wrong direction.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you,

         11  Council member. And, again, we have been joined by

         12  both Council Member Bill Perkins and Council Member

         13  Phil Reed.  Council Member Reed, do you want to say

         14  anything up front, or wait for the Q&A?

         15                 Oh, I am sorry, he was hidden by the

         16  large cranium of Phil Reed, Council Member Dennis

         17  Gallagher, welcome.           And now, it is a

         18  pleasure to call our first witness, she has been on

         19  the show before, and we have always enjoyed having

         20  her here, Commissioner Pat Gatling of the Human

         21  Rights Commission.

         22                 COMMISSIONER GATLING:  Thanks, Bill.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  You see that

         24  is a special protocol among previous Human Rights

         25  Commissioners that they applaud their successors.
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          2  Welcome, Commissioner.

          3                 COMMISSIONER GATLING:  Good morning,

          4  I am glad to be here.  I usually tell people, when I

          5  go to Brooklyn, I'm so glad to be back in Brooklyn,

          6  but now I'm so glad to be back here in Council

          7  Chambers with you all this morning.  So good

          8  morning.

          9                 I am here to testify on Intro. 114- A

         10  in relation to the recognition of marriages that are

         11  not recognized by the State of New York, domestic

         12  partnerships and civil unions lawfully entered into

         13  in other jurisdictions.  Although, my agency would

         14  not administer this proposed legislation, I am

         15  testifying on behalf of the Administration.

         16                 Although the Administration does not

         17  have any opposition to the merits and objectives of

         18  this proposed legislation, because of time

         19  constraints relating to the budget, and because of

         20  proposed legislation impacts, the way this proposed

         21  legislation impacts on various agencies, the Law

         22  Department has not completed its review.  Once their

         23  analysis is complete, the Administration will sit

         24  down with the Council and discuss any clarifications

         25  or changes that may be necessary.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  So let me just

          4  make sure I  -  that was the briefest testimony in

          5  the history of the City Council.

          6                 COMMISSIONER GATLING:  Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  We commend you

          8  for that, you are reinventing government.

          9                 COMMISSIONER GATLING:  I am sure

         10  there are more important people you want to hear

         11  from today.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  The more

         13  important thing was the first clause before the

         14  comma.  So am I understanding correctly, you are

         15  saying that the Administration shares the goals of

         16  this bill and believes that this bill is helpful,

         17  but you want to have time to analyze the details; is

         18  that a fair statement?

         19                 COMMISSIONER GATLING:  That would be

         20  a fair statement.  I mean, the problem is, as you

         21  are well aware, Council member, they have been, you

         22  know, the Law Department has been engaged in the

         23  budget talks, and so many things have been going on.

         24  So it really would not be fair for me to really

         25  comment on any changes, but I think that we are,
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          2  hopefully, there will not be too many.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Yes.  My

          4  colleagues, I know, we will probably ask more

          5  questions than the total sum of that testimony.  But

          6  if anyone has questions?  Council Member Quinn.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  So you, as

          8  soon as the Law Department finishes its review, you

          9  or the appropriate person of the Law Department, or

         10  the Office of Legislative Affairs, or whomever,

         11  would be willing to sit down with the Chair and

         12  myself and Speaker Miller's staff to go through any

         13  operational issues you might have with the bill?

         14  Since, philosophically there is no issue to discuss;

         15  you would be willing to sit down to discuss the

         16  operational part of it.

         17                 COMMISSIONER GATLING:  Absolutely.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  And for the

         19  record, I see the Office of Legislative Affairs

         20  nodding aggressively behind the Commissioner.

         21                 I also, just for the record, want to

         22  note, because it is germane to this issue, and want

         23  to thank the Bloomberg Administration, in the budget

         24  discussions, the Bloomberg Administration took a

         25  very important step forward on domestic partnership,
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          2  which was a month or so ago.  We have a piece of

          3  legislation before the State and Federal Legislation

          4  Committee regarding a surviving domestic partner, a

          5  female surviving domestic partner of a male

          6  firefighter, who was killed in the line of duty in

          7  August 2001.  And the Administration sent a bill to

          8  Albany that would have given that particular woman,

          9  Ms. Garumba, the same line of- duty death benefits

         10  that a wife would receive, if her husband had been

         11  killed in the line- of- duty.

         12                 At that hearing, the issue of whether

         13  the Administration would support that initiative

         14  more broadly for all domestic partners regardless of

         15  their gender or sexual orientation came up, and

         16  there was, some confusion on the Administration's

         17  part on their larger position.  But it was really

         18  terrific after they took a look at it during the

         19  budget discussions in front of the State and Federal

         20  Legislation Committee, the Bloomberg Administration

         21  supported that initiative on a broad, for all

         22  domestic partners regardless of gender or sexual

         23  orientation manner.

         24                 We were able, the Administration and

         25  Council to lobby together in Albany on that bill.  I
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          2  think, probably because of the Mayor, more than us,

          3  we were able to get a Republican sponsor in the

          4  Senate for that bill, and it has actually passed in

          5  the Senate.  And we now need it to pass in the

          6  Assembly, when they return.  So those are actually

          7  largely due to the support of the Mayor, and also

          8  Council Member Maria Baez, who chairs our State and

          9  Federal Legislation Committee.

         10                 So I am glad to hear your testimony,

         11  because I think it tracks with the positive

         12  cooperation and teamwork we are having as it relates

         13  to domestic partner issues in the City.  So if you

         14  could thank the Mayor for that.

         15                 COMMISSIONER GATLING:  I certainly

         16  will pass that on to him.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  And

         18  Commissioner, seeing no other questions, I would

         19  just like to say, bluntly, I think part of the

         20  reason why you are not hearing a lot of difficult

         21  questions right now, is, a) we have a lot of faith

         22  in you.  We appreciate everything you have done so

         23  far in Office.

         24                 COMMISSIONER GATLING:  Well, thank

         25  you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  And b) on a

          3  number of issues, including the Transgender Rights

          4  Bill, we appreciate the way Mayor Bloomberg

          5  approached the situation, and the way he has

          6  embraced the goals that we have set forward.  And it

          7  gives us a willingness to believe that we are all on

          8  the same page here, and to be a little more patient.

          9    Although, we are not that patient, we will be a

         10  little patient.

         11                 COMMISSIONER GATLING:  Well, we are

         12  going to do great things.  So we are looking forward

         13  to the continued cooperation.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  So you get

         15  extra credit for having been good up to now.

         16                 COMMISSIONER GATLING:  Okay, great.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  All right.

         18  Thank you very much, Commissioner.

         19                 The next witness is our City Clerk,

         20  and Clerk of the Council, and former Council member,

         21  Victor Robles.  Please, identify yourself, and if

         22  any of your colleagues are speaking, have them as

         23  well.

         24                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  Good morning, Mr.

         25  Chairman DeBlasio, and especially my colleagues that
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          2  I not only have the privilege of serving with now as

          3  the Clerk of the Council, but also those of you who

          4  I see, served when I was here, and I say that I

          5  enjoyed coming back.  And I must tell you, I am not

          6  too comfortable being on this side, I was used to

          7  over there.

          8                 Anyway, Mr. Chairman, let me also

          9  introduce the people who are with me.  First, my

         10  First Deputy City Clerk, Ray Teedum (phonetic), and

         11  of course, my recent appointment as the General

         12  Counsel to the City Clerk, Patrick Simore

         13  (phonetic), who is my Counsel.

         14                 Mr. Chairman and members of the

         15  Committee, as you know, it has been said that I am

         16  the City Clerk of the City of New York, as well as

         17  the Clerk of the Council.  And among the many duties

         18  is the maintenance of the Domestic Partner Registry.

         19    A function first assigned to the City Clerk by

         20  Mayor David Dinkins, Executive Order 48, on January

         21  7th, 1993.  By way of background information, let me

         22  talk a bit about the origins of domestic

         23  partnership, as we now know it in the City of New

         24  York.  On August 7th, 1989, Mayor Koch signed

         25  Executive Order 123, which established bereavement
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          2  leaves for domestic partners of City employees.

          3  Executive Order 123 defined a domestic partnership

          4  as "two people, both of whom are 18 years of age or

          5  older, and neither of whom is married, who have a

          6  close and committed personal relationship involving

          7  shared responsibilities, who have lived together for

          8  a period of one year or more on a continuous basis

          9  at the time of registration, and who have not

         10  terminated the registration in accordance with the

         11  procedures to be established by the Department of

         12  Personnel of the City of New York."  That Executive

         13  Order was the genesis of domestic partnership in

         14  this city.

         15                 Executive Order 49, issued on the

         16  same date as Executive Order 48, which I mentioned

         17  earlier, expanded the rights of domestic partners,

         18  which under Executive Order 123 was only limited to

         19  the bereavement leave.  And as you stated, Mr.

         20  Chairman, as you opened up the hearing, I will omit,

         21  because clearly it was up the screen and explained

         22  what the expansions are.

         23                 Let me also say that Executive Order

         24  48 established the City Clerk as the registrar for

         25  domestic partners, specified who qualified, a City
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          2  resident or employee, established a procedure for

          3  termination of the partnership, and vested in the

          4  City Clerk the responsibility to establish procedure

          5  to ensure the confidentiality of the registry.

          6  Local Law 27 of 1998 essentially codified Executive

          7  Order 48 and 49 adding health benefits as an

          8  additional right awarded to domestic partners.

          9  Other refinements include the rules under which

         10  domestic partners' records were to be obtained,

         11  which pretty much mimic City rules governing

         12  marriage records.

         13                 Since the establishment of the

         14  registry, 17,140 domestic partnerships have been

         15  registered with my Office.  That is roughly an

         16  average of 1,804 per year.  Of those, 31 percent

         17  represent same sex couples.  Heterosexual couples

         18  account for the bulk of domestic partnerships, some

         19  69 percent.

         20                 Under my tenure domestic partnership

         21  registration, which was solely available in the

         22  Manhattan Office of the City Clerk has been extended

         23  to all the five boroughs.  Now domestic partners can

         24  register in the Borough in which they reside, rather

         25  than taking that long trip to Manhattan.  As a
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          2  precautionary measure, for not only dealing with any

          3  bias staff, that as you know, I have only been in

          4  the position eight months, one of the things that we

          5  are doing now is, and in working with the Human

          6  Rights Commission, is that all of my staff will be

          7  trained on sensitivity with respect to all aspects

          8  of what we need.  I think Mayor Dinkins referred

          9  constantly to that mosaic, and I think I want to

         10  continue in that legacy, since he was also a City

         11  Clerk.

         12                 And let me also say that one of the

         13  things that I, Council members, intend to do, is

         14  make my Office more professional and user friendly.

         15  I think that one of things that are very frustrating

         16  to me when I first got there was the hostility.  And

         17  being a public servant for almost 23 years of my

         18  life, I believe, that while not a Mayoral Agency, I

         19  am still an agency that gives service to the public,

         20  and I intend to make that Office more responsible to

         21  the public.

         22                 So Council members, the role of the

         23  City Clerk, as you know, is to implement and to

         24  carry out functions designated by the Charter and

         25  the Executive and Legislative Branches of the City
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          2  government.  I remain committed to doing just that

          3  in the instance of Intro. 114- A, if enacted by this

          4  law.

          5                 In closing, I would like to take this

          6  opportunity to remind that whatever the instance

          7  that may happen after this hearings, I remain

          8  committed in carrying out the City Clerk's functions

          9  efficiently, professionally, and public- friendly.

         10                 Thank you for soliciting my

         11  testimony.  There are handouts, which I have given

         12  to the Chair and your Counsel, which basically

         13  explains, not only when someone comes to our office

         14  what it is that we require them to present to us in

         15  order to register. It also, as you know Mr.

         16  Chairman, with that handout, I have given you also

         17  the certificate that is given to those who are

         18  registered. It has been duplicated, but I just want

         19  you to know that it is blue.  So when someone is

         20  registered, before they leave, they actually get a

         21  certificate, as Council Member Quinn was referring

         22  to, that that person can have it.

         23                 Also, with respect to terminating the

         24  relationship, I also put in there the affidavit that

         25  has to be notarized.  And let me just point out for
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          2  those, like myself, who never had any experience

          3  until I became a City Clerk, in termination, not

          4  both partners has to be present, either one could be

          5  present.  However, once that is terminated, the

          6  other partner also gets served notice of the

          7  termination of the partnership, domestic

          8  partnership.

          9                 So, Mr. Chairman, I will stop, and if

         10  any questions, I would be more than happy to answer,

         11  if I have the answer to them.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Well, I want

         13  to thank you for your testimony.  I also want to

         14  thank, I think, taking this step of making sure that

         15  each Borough Office can register domestic partners

         16  is a fundamental reform and very, very important.

         17  Again, I cannot help but think back to about 10

         18  years ago, when we all were working on establishing

         19  this.  And as often is the case with a big idea, I

         20  do not think we thought about so much, how do you

         21  make it as accessible as it should be for everyone.

         22  So I really want to thank you for taking that step

         23  of bringing it down to the Borough level.

         24                 And I also want to emphasize that

         25  anything you can do to continue outreach efforts so
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          2  people in the community know how easy and available

          3  this service is, we would really appreciate as

          4  aggressive outreach as possible.

          5                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  Mr. Chairman, let

          6  me point out, because you led into something, and I

          7  asked my colleague, because I was on the other side

          8  at one time, that in the past, and I speak from

          9  experience as part of the leadership and

         10  negotiating, is that the City Clerk's Office used to

         11  pop up, and before you knew it things came out of

         12  the budget.

         13                 Clearly, I just want to, again, say

         14  that I am prepared to carry out my mandates.  In my

         15  case, I have both the Executive and the Legislative

         16  Branches to account to, as not only the City Clerk,

         17  but also the Clerk of the Council.  And I only, as

         18  we move forward, and I commit myself to continue,

         19  because those were the frustrations that I had when

         20  I was a Council member, where we knew there was a

         21  City Clerk's Office, but most of us did not know

         22  what it did.  And I am committed to making sure that

         23  the public knows that.  That as you look at your

         24  budget and for future, whenever you see the City

         25  Clerk's Office, before that gets eliminated, that
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          2  perhaps people reach out and understand why it is

          3  there, because none of this can happen unless we

          4  have the appropriate funding.  And so I appreciate

          5  your statement, and I look forward to working with

          6  you and all your colleagues.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you.

          8  Any of my colleagues have any questions.  Phil.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Good morning.

         10                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  Good morning.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  What is the fee

         12  for registering as a domestic partner?

         13                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  Again, Council

         14  member, the fee is $20, but in that packet, it lists

         15  all of that.  The registration is $20; the

         16  termination of the registration is $15.  To amend

         17  the registration, in case there needs to be some

         18  amendment, sometimes I think it is name changes and

         19  what have you - -

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Could you

         21  articulate that a little bit more?

         22                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  Okay.  Just like

         23   - -

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:   Changes?

         25                 CITY CLERK ROBLES: - -  marriage
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          2  licenses, also in domestic partnerships, sometimes

          3  people come and when they register, something is

          4  omitted, or they do something that later on they

          5  realize, for whatever purpose, they want to come

          6  back to correct it.  That is an amendment to the

          7  original registration, and both in the Marriage

          8  Bureau and in Domestic Partnership amendments, there

          9  is a fee.  And the fee for that is $15.

         10                 If domestic partners want additional

         11  copies of the original registration certificate that

         12  is a $5 fee.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  And so the

         14  certificate that the people get is similar to the

         15  marriage certificate.  So it is regular standard, I

         16  am sorry, Vic, but they just gave us the packet, so

         17  I did not have a chance to review the material.  But

         18  it is not like a wallet size card; it is a piece of

         19  paper.

         20                 CITY CLERK REED:  Right, right.

         21  Council member, you see, and it is interesting,

         22  because when I became a City Clerk, the marriage

         23  certificates happen to be blue also, and if you see

         24  this one here, it is similar with the marriage

         25  certificate on the top. We mail it out sometimes, so
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          2  the names are on top, and the certificate, itself,

          3  is on the bottom.  Same thing with domestic

          4  partnership where the certificate simulates, to the

          5  extent that I can within the laws, in the marriage

          6  certificate has my name as the Clerk plus the City

          7  Seal, same thing with the partnership.

          8                 So yes, it is similar and it is not a

          9  wallet size certificate.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Council Member

         12  Quinn.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you.  It

         14  is funny you mentioned that there was a fee for

         15  severing the relationship.  I have frequently

         16  mentioned, although, I did not raise it this year in

         17  budget negotiations, that, you know, you have to pay

         18  a marriage fee, we should, you know, and I could do

         19  this, it will not hurt me, politically suggest this,

         20  a divorce fee.  You know, since half of them do not

         21  work out, it can only help with the budget deficit,

         22  since we have to pay a fee for severing domestic

         23  partnerships, just seems only fair.

         24                 Do you think there would be any, you

         25  know, operational issues that would be problematic
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          2  for you as the City Clerk with this law?

          3                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  Council member, I

          4  think that, because I had been, and again, you know

          5  I wear two hats, I am the City Clerk, and I am also

          6  the Clerk of the Council.  And so I have been in

          7  communication with both the Legislative and the

          8  Executive.

          9                 I think there are questions,

         10  specifically if I am mandated to - -

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Okay.

         12                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  I think the

         13  question is, does that certificate, as you

         14  mentioned, does that certificate, when you come here

         15  to New York City, does that become automatic?

         16  Because anyone else who comes in needs certain

         17  things, has to produce certain things, and then get

         18  registered.  And so I hesitate because the way the

         19  bill is now, and I just realized that it is an "A"

         20  print.  So there must have been some amendments

         21  since I originally got it, I just need to be clear

         22  of what is it that we are supposed to do, if we are

         23  the ones to do it, number one.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Okay.

         25                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  Number two, and
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          2  wrong place, but because I was not about to use it

          3  during the crisis that you have had with the $5

          4  billion deficit.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Right, right.

          6                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  And I commend

          7  this Council, although, those, they would say that

          8  you could not do it, you did it.  When my

          9  predecessor became the City Clerk, he had 68 people

         10  working for him.  When I became the City Clerk on

         11  October 12th, I only have 49, I am at the bottom.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Right.

         13                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  So any additional

         14  responsibility, I also ask you to look at it,

         15  because I need, if I am going to implement, I need

         16  also the headcount.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Yes.

         18                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  So I am not, my

         19  headcount is 49. I, again, this is not the place for

         20  it, I have no intentions, but perhaps as this moves

         21  forward, if I see that there is a hardship, I will

         22  come back to the Council and to the Mayor's people

         23  and say, I need my headcount raised.

         24                 But at this point, I do not think

         25  both my Legal, and- -  I am sorry, I forgot to
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          2  introduce also, Jose Santiago is my Supervisor over

          3  the domestic partnership, and I do not think that,

          4  at this point, we perceive any additional burden.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Now, if you

          6  are a married person and you go to the, well, if you

          7  are not, if you are a person that wants to be

          8  married, you go to the City Clerk, you can get

          9  married there, and there are forms, whatever,

         10  whatever you do.  And then you are married and you

         11  get a piece of paper.  And you keep, I guess, the

         12  City Clerk keeps a list of everybody that you marry,

         13  right?  I guess it is not a registry, but there is a

         14  list.

         15                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  Well there is a

         16  registry, because - -

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Oh, okay.

         18                 CITY CLERK ROBLES: - -  in the

         19  Marriage Bureau side, no one keeps the marriage

         20  license.  You get the marriage license before you

         21  get married.  Then I you marry with us on the spot,

         22  we give you the certificate.  If you go outside of

         23  the City Clerk, the burden is on whoever officiates

         24  over the marriage and must be registered with the

         25  City Clerk, because if not, that marriage is still
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          2  not, technically, recognized.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Okay.

          4                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  We then give them

          5  that certificate.

          6                 With respect to domestic partners,

          7  they come to us, they also, on the spot when they

          8  get registered, receive that certificate on the same

          9  day of the registration.  Correct, Jose?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  But if you are

         11  married at some point, assuming that you are married

         12  by somebody who is authorized to do so, you get a

         13  piece of paper.

         14                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  A certificate, a

         15  marriage certificate.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Now, if a

         17  married person moves here from somewhere else, they

         18  are assumed to be married, but they do not have to

         19  ever check in with you, right?  I mean, they do not

         20  have to say, add me to the list, kind of a thing.

         21                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  No.  You are

         22  correct.  However, my experience in the eight months

         23  that I have been City Clerk, sometimes I think

         24  people who have dealt with the City Clerk's Office,

         25  who have worked for us for a long time, you know, it
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          2  becomes a routine, and sometimes you know how to get

          3  information out of people.  From the eight months

          4  that I have been there, I have learned to also, that

          5  routine.  When someone publicly tells us that they

          6  were married, then we are bound not to move forward

          7  on allowing them to, what they call a second

          8  marriage, to remarry unless they show us a divorce.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Right.

         10                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  Or they have an

         11  affidavit that they sign, where they attest that

         12  they have been divorced, and I guess this affidavit

         13  is the legal document that protects us.

         14                 But, no, we do not go around saying

         15  to people, were you married outside of New York

         16  City.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Right.  So

         18  separate from getting divorce where then you have to

         19  prove you are not married, you do not have to like

         20  check in or anything.

         21                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  Right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  You have

         23  somewhere in your safety deposit box or in your file

         24  cabinet, your marriage certificate.

         25                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  Right.  Because
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          2  when they try to go through a process.  Let's say

          3  they say nothing, and we are now all into computers.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Right.

          5                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  And if there was

          6  a license issued, let's say they were married within

          7  New York State, we will know it.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Okay.

          9                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  Outside, no, we

         10  would not know it.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  So then it

         12  would very much kind of be the same thing, you would

         13  come here from somewhere else, and you would just

         14  keep your domestic partnership certificate in your

         15  safety deposit box or your filing cabinet, wherever

         16  you keep your birth certificate and your important

         17  papers.  So just like married people, you would not

         18  have to check in.

         19                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  Right.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  But if you got

         21  to the point, either because there had been a

         22  tragedy in your family or at a work situation, you

         23  would just go get that file and bring it like you

         24  would.

         25                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  Right.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  So probably,

          3  again, I mean this is more of a statement than a

          4  question.  There probably would not actually be a

          5  lot of operational issues, because we are just

          6  saying to people, you have to keep, make sure you

          7  bring your papers from the other state to here.

          8                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  Right.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  And then that

         10  would be exactly - -

         11                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  I think the only

         12  thing I see with that, and again, that is, the

         13  question mark is, let's say that person loses that

         14  certificate.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Okay, okay.

         16                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  And now the law

         17  says that it is recognized.  I guess my, where I am

         18  trying to pursue is, if someone loses their marriage

         19  license or the certificate, they can come back and

         20  we can actually find it and reissue one.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  But if it is

         22  only in the State of New York you can find it, or if

         23  it is anywhere?

         24                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  No, I am saying

         25  is, again, that is the uncertainty.  If the law says
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          2  someone comes to the City Clerk and says, here is

          3  the certificate from somewhere else, we really, I

          4  just do not know the mechanism, right now, we need

          5  to see what the law is going to be.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Well, what do

          7  you do if somebody loses their marriage certificate?

          8                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  Well since they

          9  are in the system, we can then reissue a new one.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  If they were

         11  married anywhere in the United States?

         12                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  No, no, no, this

         13  is just, again, the domestic partnership is local

         14  law.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  No, no, no,

         16  but I am asking for the comparison.  Like if I was

         17  married in California and I moved here, but I lost

         18  my California Marriage Certificate, what do I do?

         19                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  They would have

         20  to go back to California and obtain a copy of that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Well, I mean,

         22  I think what we are looking for is it to be the

         23  same.  So, if you are married in California and you

         24  lost it, then you have to talk to California. If you

         25  are domestic partnered, then you have to talk to
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          2  wherever that was.  I mean, look, I would like it to

          3  be easier for us, but I am not unreasonable, I will

          4  take the same standard, you know.

          5                 Okay, thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Council Member

          7  Reed.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Thank you.  I

          9  do not think we are trying to beat this, brutalize

         10  this issue.  Just I think we are trying to get some

         11  clarification, Victor, and I appreciate your

         12  patience with this.

         13                 Are you able to access the other

         14  states and ask and find out, get to see if other

         15  people are married not to give them a copy of it, so

         16  you have to take it- -  there is a whole lot of this

         17  going on, that means no.

         18                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  No, the answer is

         19  no.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Okay.  You both

         21  do it so well together.

         22                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  We are getting

         23  use to each other.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  All three of

         25  you.  Right, okay.  I guess in my mind, and I know
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          2  what we are trying to do with this bill, Christine,

          3  and Council Member DeBlasio, but I sort of think

          4  what I am hearing from Christine, we take for

          5  granted, somebody walks into the hospital to see

          6  somebody, they say, that is my wife, that is my

          7  husband, there are no questions asked.  I mean, you

          8  know, that is my sister, it is my brother, whatever.

          9    And I guess, to some extent, for heterosexual

         10  domestic partners it is fairly simple, that is my

         11  partner, so there is an assumption.

         12                 The difficulty, I think, is when you

         13  have the same sex situation, in whatever other

         14  legalistic environment hospitals or if somebody

         15  needs, so that is the reason why I am asking if,

         16  once we pass this law, I presume that we will then

         17  have to challenge you.  But the problem is that

         18  people are going to confrontation a situation and

         19  then have to go back and remind Metropolitan

         20  Hospital or whoever it is, that there is a law that

         21  they cannot stop people from doing this.  Because

         22  you will still end up with this and prove it to me.

         23  When you are in some stressful environment, you do

         24  not want to have to go back and call the City

         25  Council member from your district and say, you know,
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          2  DeBlasio will go over there and straighten this out.

          3                 So there is no way, though, in your

          4  Office where people could get some sort of

          5  identification that, therefore, they would have that

          6  this is a domestic partner.

          7                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  Council member,

          8  let me just --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  I am not even

         10  sure that is what people want, but it seems to me,

         11  it would solve a problem.

         12                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  No, no, no, let

         13  me break this in two places.  With respect to HHC

         14  facilities or public facilities, as you know,

         15  because you were a member of my Committee, the

         16  Health Committee and so was Chris, that was

         17  something that we pursued, and I do not think the

         18  problem will be so much once you pass the law with

         19  public institutions.  I think the loophole is in the

         20  voluntary sector, now of course, that we need to

         21  follow through.

         22                 With respect to, is it possible that

         23  we can issue something?  Well again, once the law

         24  gets passed and enacted, and if this is something

         25  that I need to look at because it would be helpful,
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          2  I will repeat, until 2006 as City Clerk, I intend to

          3  open up that Office, I intend to have everyone in

          4  New York City know that it exists, what it does.

          5  And this is an area that you, I, and this Committee

          6  can work towards, and if there is a need to do that,

          7  I do not see any problem why we could not do that.

          8                 But I cannot, on the spot, say to

          9  you, yes or no, I need to know what the end product

         10  is.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  I want to

         13  thank you, Mr. Robles.  I really, again, appreciate

         14  what you are doing.  I do want to recommend that you

         15  have a conversation with Council Member Gale Brewer.

         16    She had a wonderful hearing yesterday on the

         17  Internet and its emerging use in New York City

         18  government.  And I think that might help solve, for

         19  both domestic partners and for married people this

         20  information flow problem, as we hopefully pass this

         21  bill and make it easier for people coming into the

         22  City.  So I would commend that to you.

         23                 But thank you, again, for the good

         24  work you are doing.

         25                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  And wait, one

          3  last comment.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  And I also

          5  wanted to echo the Chair's thanks, both for the

          6  Borough- based Offices, which domestic partnership

          7  is very important to the disabled community, because

          8  frequently getting married can cause significant

          9  problems as it relates to, you know, a financial

         10  issue.  So that was very much appreciated by the

         11  disabled community.

         12                 And I just want to say that when I

         13  met with Victor, I actually went over to meet with

         14  him as the former Health Committee Chair to get

         15  advice.  And when I sat down at the meeting, he like

         16  presented me with this whole way he had made it

         17  easier for domestic partners, made things the same

         18  color, et cetera, et cetera.  So I am confident that

         19  when we pass this law, any issues there are, you

         20  will be able to figure them out, because you made

         21  things easier before even being asked or legislated

         22  to do so.  So thank you.

         23                 CITY CLERK ROBLES:  Mr. Chairman, let

         24  me just say to my colleagues also, that any way that

         25  my Office can be more public friendly, I welcome any
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          2  recommendations at any time, and I look forward to

          3  any one of you to reaching out to my Office.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you.

          6  Before the next witness, I just want to note that we

          7  have a group of VIPs here, we have students from PS

          8  306 in Brooklyn, accompanied by Council Member

          9  Charles Barron.  Students you are seeing government

         10  here in action, and any questions you have, you may

         11  come up afterwards and ask us.  But do not listen to

         12  Charles Barron, he will give you the wrong answer.

         13  Just come up afterwards, we will make, we will set

         14  the record straight.

         15                 All right, we are pleased, next to

         16  call up the former Commissioner of the Human Rights

         17  Commission, my former colleague, Dennis de Leon.

         18                 MR. DELEON:  I appreciate the

         19  opportunity to appear today before the Committee.

         20  And I just want to start by kind underscoring the

         21  need for this law.  I recently had a discussion with

         22  a woman who was in charge of student affairs at a

         23  prominent northern Manhattan Medical School, where

         24  she described her annual retreat, three- day retreat

         25  for new medical students, and she said they could
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          2  bring their spouses.  And I asked her, are they

          3  allowed to bring their domestic partners, and she

          4  said, oh, no, of course not, we have no way of

          5  telling exactly how serious they are, et cetera.

          6                 So many people do move from out- of-

          7  state to attend school and have different issues in

          8  this town.  And if I ever saw a better example for a

          9  Human Rights complaint, that was it.

         10                 And the second reason why the law is

         11  needed is that the New York City Human Rights Law is

         12  very unique in terms of allowing legal actions based

         13  upon the disparate impact of company policies on

         14  married versus non- married couples.  I do not know

         15  if you are familiar with the case Yeshiva

         16  University, but the sole linchpin that enabled the

         17  case to sustain itself and be heard, was the fact

         18  that in 1992 the Human Rights Law was changed to

         19  allow all protected groups, to say, this particular

         20  rule of this company has a disparate impact on same

         21  sex couples.

         22                 And in passing this law, will enable

         23  new residents to take advantage of that even sooner.

         24                 Thirdly, I believe that these kind

         25  of, this kind of inclusion of explicit language in
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          2  the Statute also provides what is an important

          3  aspect of Human Rights Law, which is notice.  I do

          4  not know what the Law Department is going to say,

          5  but oftentimes they say, a law is not needed because

          6  it is already covered.  If that should be the

          7  response, I would encourage you to still go ahead

          8  with the law's passage, because it is important that

          9  a Human Rights Law clearly spell out what was

         10  covered.  And I believe that including this language

         11  will seriously help.

         12                 Fourthly, I think in passing this law

         13  there will be a tremendous signal sent to other

         14  progressive jurisdictions creating like an

         15  underground railway of reciprocal relationships,

         16  which I believe could form a network that can stand

         17  on its own, you know, in opposition to the trend,

         18  which your slide pointed out. And I believe for that

         19  reason, it is also very important.

         20                 I must say that our law is tougher

         21  than many other jurisdictions.  When my partner and

         22  I registered as domestic partners, we had to go to

         23  Bloomberg for our legal form, up here below Canal

         24  Street and find reciprocal power of attorneys,

         25  because we had no accounts together, we had no bills
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          2  together.  But we actually had to fill powers of

          3  attorney that was somewhat complicated and the year

          4  residence was not an issue, but for some people it

          5  is.  So it is not easy here, it is easier in other

          6  jurisdictions to become domestic partners, and I

          7  think we should recognize that and not impose on

          8  people who have registered from out- of- state, the

          9  same requirements, which I consider in some cases

         10  too excessive.  We do not require married couples to

         11  be together a year, we do not require married

         12  couples to execute joint powers of attorney showing

         13  mutual relationships.

         14                 I believe it would allow those

         15  jurisdictions that have been more progressive in

         16  this way to have their domestic partnership rules

         17  acknowledged.

         18                 Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you.

         20  Questions?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I just wanted

         22  to thank Dennis, and just wanted to let folks in the

         23  audience know that in addition to being the Director

         24  of the Latino Commission on AIDS and the former

         25  Human Rights Commission, Dennis is, as soon as he
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          2  finishes with his Department of Investigation

          3  process, et cetera, et cetera, soon to be the

          4  Manhattan City Council Delegation's representative

          5  to the Health and Hospital Corporation's Board of

          6  Directors.

          7                 MR. DELEON:  I am deeply honored,

          8  thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you.

         10                 MR. DELEON:  I just wanted to correct

         11  one footnote on history of domestic partnership.

         12  Everyone should remember that there was when this

         13  Executive Order was issued, there was a pending

         14  lawsuit in which it did not happen in a void.  And

         15  every win that we have had on these issues has been

         16  in partnership with, usually, aggressive legal

         17  advocates.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  They are up

         19  next.  They are the next guests.

         20                 MR. DELEON:  Okay, all right, thank

         21  you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you very

         23  much.  Dennis has provided tremendous sequay here,

         24  you get extra credit for that.               We want

         25  to bring up some heroes of the Movement for Domestic
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          2  Partnership, the folks who brought the lawsuit in

          3  the late eighties that really led to the first

          4  Executive Orders, Connie Kurtz, Ruth Berman, and

          5  Ronald Madson, please step forward.

          6                 While they are taking their

          7  positions, I just want to welcome Council Member

          8  David Yassky.  And before our witnesses, Council

          9  Member Yassky has a statement.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chairman.  I just want to make a very brief

         12  statement in strong, strong support of this bill and

         13  of your leadership on this issue.  I commend you for

         14  holding this hearing, for considering this

         15  legislation.  It is my hope, I was not here at the

         16  outset, I was at another hearing, I do not know if

         17  you stated any intentions to your future plans, but

         18  it is my fervent hope that you will move this piece

         19  of legislation and bring it before the full Council.

         20    I would like nothing more than an opportunity to

         21  vote in favor of it.

         22                 It is my personal belief that same

         23  sex couples should have the right to be married,

         24  just like any other couple. I think it is a denial

         25  of a fundamental civil right.  And I hope that we in
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          2  the Council can move the State Legislature to take

          3  some action on that at some point.  But until that

          4  day comes, I think this is a very, very important

          5  piece of legislation and I commend you, and of

          6  course, Council Member Quinn's leadership.  I know

          7  she is one of the prime sponsors of this, and I

          8  strongly support this bill.

          9                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for giving

         10  me the opportunity to make that comment.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you,

         12  Council member, and in fact, the summary is this,

         13  that the Administration has shown a fairly positive

         14  view of this bill.  We intend to work with them very

         15  quickly and aggressively, and it is certainly our

         16  sincere hope that this bill will be voted upon in

         17  this Committee in the next couple of months and then

         18  go to the floor of the Council, where I am sure that

         19  with everyone's help, it will have tremendous

         20  support.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 And now, again, we are honored to

         23  have our panel here.  Please, introduce yourselves

         24  into the microphone, and we welcome your testimony.

         25                 MS. BERMAN:  My name is Ruth Berman.
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          2                 MR. MADSON:  I am Ronald Madson.

          3                 MS. KURTZ:  And I am Connie Kurtz.

          4  Thank you.  I need to ask a question, please, before

          5  I make my statement.  Do I understand rightly so

          6  that this bill applies to residents?  My question is

          7  coming from a thought.  Ruthie and I live here in

          8  the State of New York, in the City of New York, in

          9  the Borough of Brooklyn.  We do a lot of traveling,

         10  if God forbid something happens to us in another

         11  jurisdiction, that in fact picks up on this bill

         12  that is going to be passed in the New York City

         13  Council, and they also will have the recognition of

         14  out- of- state domestic partners civil unions, do I

         15  have to be a resident, can I pick up the protection

         16  of whether Ruthie or I are the ones that get ill, in

         17  the hospital, but will I be recognized as a domestic

         18  partner as a tourist, and not as a resident?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Let me answer

         20  this in two ways. One, I am going to tell you what I

         21  think the answer is to that question, and then we

         22  are going to have the legal staff check that and get

         23  back to folks after the hearing.

         24                 As I understand it, if you were a

         25  tourist visiting from, visiting New York from
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          2  another state or city, and you were registered

          3  domestic partner, and your domestic partner had an

          4  accident and ended up in the hospital.  Just, if you

          5  were the spouse in that hospital situation, you

          6  would be able to visit.  If you were the domestic

          7  partner in that hospital situation, you would be

          8  able to visit.

          9                 MS. KURTZ:  Right.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  If you were

         11  visiting from another place and were in New York,

         12  under this bill.  Now obviously if you are

         13  registered here and you are somewhere else, that we

         14  cannot control.

         15                 MS. KURTZ:  Understood.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  But this bill,

         17  as I understand it, but we should check to make sure

         18  it is written, the intent of this bill was, yes,

         19  that a tourist would be treated the same, because it

         20  seeks to convey all of the privileges and rights of

         21  a marriage.  We should check with the lawyers to

         22  make sure it is written that way.  The lawyers are

         23  shaking their heads that it is. So - -

         24                 MS. KURTZ:  It is written that way.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: - -  to make
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          2  sure that you would get all rights and privileges,

          3  which, and obviously that is one.

          4                 MS. KURTZ: Excellent, thank you,

          5  Chris.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  But to

          7  clarify, because this is crucial, we will not have

          8  really the state of affairs we would like to have,

          9  until other jurisdictions pass the same law.

         10                 MS. KURTZ: That I understand.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  So if you are

         12  a tourist in Nevada or in Montana, you should enjoy

         13  the same rights, but until they pass a bill, you

         14  will not enjoy those rights.

         15                 MS. KURTZ:  No, that I appreciate.  I

         16  just want to make sure that this New York City

         17  Introduction 114- A also includes the traveler, not

         18  only the resident.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Anyone that is

         21  registered elsewhere.

         22                 MS. KURTZ:  Thank you.

         23                 To recognize all relationships

         24  equally, for me and others it feels reasonable,

         25  fair, even rational, even just.  And isn't this what
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          2  you are all about, you, the City Council.  You had

          3  the common sense to acknowledge and codify domestic

          4  partners.  Our city in so many ways has shown

          5  foresight, courage and a sincere desire to embrace

          6  and welcome the colors that we are, the accents that

          7  we have, the short and tall of us, and the adult

          8  partners that we are.  When a fair and just decision

          9  has been made in another jurisdiction, we, as a

         10  city, individually, collectively and legally should

         11  and must recognize these relationships, domestic

         12  partnerships and civil unions and marriages.

         13                 We know all too well the prejudices,

         14  the oppressive attitudes and discrimination we face

         15  daily.  You, as a Legislative Body have an

         16  opportunity to say we will not be in cohorts with

         17  this thinking and behavior.  I ask, we ask that you

         18  put into law Introduction No. 114- A.

         19                 And I thank you again, all of you,

         20  and especially you, Christine.  Thank you.

         21                 MS. BERMAN:  We tried to fool you a

         22  little bit by separating us, but Connie and I have

         23  been together for 27 years, and, yes, we were.  And

         24  the fact that we cannot get married, just keeps me

         25  more determined to take care of myself so that I can
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          2  live long enough to get to that place.

          3                 I would like to share two things with

          4  you that came up while I was listening.  And to tell

          5  you a little story of how important these kinds of

          6  bills to give marriage, civil unions, domestic

          7  partnership to gay and lesbian persons.  Connie and

          8  I were visiting in Toronto.  To get into Toronto was

          9  very easy, we showed our passports.  To get out of

         10  Toronto and into the United States, we had to pass

         11  US Customs.  On the plane you have a custom's

         12  declaration if you bought gifts, and it specifically

         13  says only fill out one form if you are living in the

         14  same household.  So of course, Connie and I filled

         15  out one form.  When we reached the US Custom's

         16  person and we were standing together, he said to

         17  Connie, and who are you?   Usually, she says, lover,

         18  but given what is going on with, you know, getting

         19  in and out of the country, she said I am the

         20  domestic partner.  And he said, move to the back of

         21  the line, that is disgusting.  That is beyond

         22  discrimination, it was shameful, but because there

         23  is a little and very little element of fear in us,

         24  believe me, we kept quiet, we wanted to get back

         25  here.  That has to change, it may not change
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          2  quickly, but New York City is the place that is

          3  going to start.

          4                 Another thing that was brought up by

          5  Councilman Reed, was how do we identify domestic

          6  partnerships in different places.  Okay, I am a Jew,

          7  I do not want to carry something around with me.

          8  The Holocaust has taught me that I had to carry

          9  around, if I lived in Europe at the time, a Jewish

         10  Star, that was very dangerous.  My saying who I am

         11  to Connie and Connie saying who she is to us, living

         12  a life together in every room of the house and out

         13  of the house, we deserve to have our full civil and

         14  human rights, and that is inclusive of marriage.

         15                 I know that I am speaking to the

         16  choir here, and I so appreciate it, so I would like

         17  my words to go back to my Councilman, the new one,

         18  Lew Fidler, is his name, okay, and tell him that

         19  Ruthie and Connie helped him get elected in his

         20  Republican neighborhood.  Okay.

         21                 The 9/11 enemy tourist destroyed the

         22  World Trade Center and thousands of persons in it,

         23  because they believed that the World Trade Center

         24  represented the face, the American Way, and the

         25  American people.  You and I know that, that is not
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          2  true.  There is a face that represents the American

          3  people and the American Way, that is the face of the

          4  Statue of Liberty, and from this face we read, give

          5  me your tired, your poor, your huddled masses,

          6  yearning to be free.  Freedom is the American way,

          7  freedom is what American people live, work and die

          8  for, and that includes the greatest city in America,

          9  New York City and all its inhabitants.

         10                 As elected officials of this great

         11  city, you have taken an oath and made a commitment

         12  to uphold the Charter of the City of New York, to

         13  make this the best city for all its inhabitants

         14  regardless of race, religion, disabilities, sex, and

         15  inclusive in this is sexual orientation, the

         16  lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender community, and

         17  to service all of the people of New York City with

         18  all the benefits and entitlements that is in your

         19  power to do.

         20                 In 1998, the Council passed the New

         21  York City Domestic Partnership Law, which codified

         22  prior Mayoral Orders establishing rights and

         23  entitlements for City residents who register their

         24  domestic partnerships with the City Clerk.  As a

         25  domestic partner, and one of the first couples to do
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          2  so, for that, this still has not given me full

          3  equality, because I cannot get married, but this

          4  will come some time in the near future.

          5                 Today, I am asking you to revise the

          6  definition of domestic partner to include couples

          7  that have registered as domestic partners, civil

          8  unions, and marriages in other jurisdictions outside

          9  of New York City.  A non- gay couple, and in some

         10  states they do not have even have to reach the year

         11  of majority, can come to New York and have all the

         12  entitlements afforded married couples.  A couple can

         13  have a one- night stand in Vegas, get married by a

         14  Justice of the Peace, and come to live and work

         15  here, and not even be asked for proof of that

         16  commitment.  And yet, as domestic partners we had to

         17  prove a year of living together, both names on lease

         18  or mortgage, bills with both names, bank accounts

         19  and on and on.  And they in a one- night stand are

         20  given full benefits by this city, by the state, by

         21  the United States of America.  And domestic

         22  partners, civil unions, would have to re- register

         23  again, because their domestic partnership

         24  registration, civil union, or marriage from another

         25  state or nation is not recognized here in New York
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          2  City or across the country. This does not dignify

          3  the relationship.  It is bias, oppressive, and

          4  undemocratic towards the lesbian and gay community.

          5                 I urge you to do what is fair and

          6  just.  In fact, I expect you to do what is fair and

          7  just, and that to pass this Intro. 114- A.  I thank

          8  you very much.

          9                 MR. MADSON:  I am sorry that my

         10  partner could not be here.  My partner is Richard

         11  Deits (phonetic), a week ago we celebrated our 32nd

         12  anniversary.  And the reason why I say that is

         13  because these two ladies, and another lesbian

         14  couple, and Richard and I, sued the City of New York

         15  back in 1988 for domestic partnership rights and

         16  benefits, and we settled that case November of 1993.

         17    The reason that we were all chosen is because at

         18  that time we were terminally boring, and they knew

         19  that we would stay together.

         20                 So, anyway, the Lesbian and Gay

         21  Teachers Association and the Land of Legal Defense

         22  were the originators of the suit. When we settled

         23  this case, my partner and I did not need the

         24  benefits, and so we did not, we had registered as

         25  domestic partners, but we did not take advantage of
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          2  the benefits.  When we finally needed to, because my

          3  partner lost his job and lost his benefits, when we

          4  went to the City Clerk, not the City Clerk, the

          5  Labor Relations to register, we walked in and we go

          6  to this woman, and on her desk are a lot of

          7  religious objects, and I figured, uh oh, I am going

          8  to have a problem here.  And she took all our

          9  information and she says, you know, congratulations,

         10  which I thought was very nice, and she said, you

         11  know, it is really unfair. And I said, you know,

         12  what is unfair?  She said, you are going to have to

         13  pay taxes on this benefit.  Our benefits do not come

         14  free.

         15                 If we were married, there would be no

         16  question, there would be nothing.  When I once,

         17  unfortunately, parked in a No Parking Zone, I had my

         18  car towed, I was going to say stolen, and went to

         19  pick up the car.  My car happens to be under

         20  Richard's name, because New York State will only

         21  issue one name per registration.  And so I went to

         22  pick it up and the woman behind, the clerk behind

         23  the desk says, you know, what right do you have to

         24  this car, because when I gave her the registration

         25  it was not my name.  I said, well, it is registered
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          2  under my domestic partner. She said, do you have the

          3  papers?  And I said to her, do you carry your

          4  marriage license?  And she looked at me, and she

          5  said, pay the bill.

          6                 So, you know, the City of New York is

          7  a wonderful place.  I have lived here my whole life.

          8    I am a fantastic booster of this City, I just

          9  think this is the best place in the world to live.

         10  It is just has been such a gift to me, and I think

         11  the domestic partnership, while a very piss- poor

         12  second to marriage, is one of the things that binds

         13  us to this city even more closely.

         14                 And when I was a leader of Lesbian

         15  and Gay Teachers for 13 years, and after we settled

         16  the case, we would have new people come to meetings,

         17  and I would say, you know, when you go out on that

         18  date and you can now tell your date that you come

         19  with benefits.  So, like move it along here.

         20                 We are about community in this City.

         21  And we are, with this bill, trying to extend that

         22  community in a more equal and just way.  The

         23  extension of this equality will make the City even

         24  more attractive to the new teachers that we need, to

         25  the new Sanitation workers, and all the other people
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          2  that come to this city to make a living and to love

          3  this city.

          4                 Hopefully, our leadership in this

          5  area will make other cities and other nations

          6  reciprocate and make LGBT people's lives that much

          7  easier.

          8                 And I want to thank you for this

          9  bill, and I want to thank, Christine, in particular,

         10  thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:   I want to

         12  welcome Council Member Jose Serrano.  And I think we

         13  have a question from Council Member Phil Reed.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Thank you, Mr.

         15  Chair.  It is not a question; it is just a comment.

         16  I just wanted to thank all of you, not only for

         17  coming and reminding us of that history, but for, in

         18  fact, making that history.  I had the pleasure of

         19  working with Ron for some period of time, when I was

         20  affiliated with Hedrick Martin, and his impatience

         21  around issues is what, I think, helped drive where

         22  you were.  I have listened to your testimonies.

         23  Connie and Ruthie, so, I feel proud as a gay man,

         24  sometimes when they tell us and the Council in

         25  places we are impatient, that is how things get
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          2  done.  So I just want to applaud you and thank you

          3  very much for all the things that you have helped

          4  the City understand what is a basic civil right.

          5                 MS. KURTZ:  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you

          7  very, very much. So now, we have a very special

          8  guest.  I saw with my own eyes 10 years ago, the

          9  role that Tom Duane played in bringing about the

         10  Domestic Partnership Executive Order.  And I think

         11  it is fair to say that no one in New York City has

         12  done more to make Domestic Partnership a reality and

         13  to help build the national movement for full

         14  recognition.  And we are really, really honored to

         15  have him today.  I know when he is complimented in

         16  this fashion, he starts to blush, so you will just

         17  have to forgive him.  Ladies and gentlemen, State

         18  Senator Tom Duane.  Senator Duane is speechless and

         19  unable to perform.

         20                 SENATOR DUANE:  You wish.  No, thank

         21  you very, very much for those kind words.  And I am

         22  very, very impressed, generally, on the New York

         23  City Council and the tremendous progress in a very

         24  short period of time that you have made for granting

         25  full equality for same gender families, as well as
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          2  your work on the Transgender Civil Rights Bill.  So

          3  it is very impressive the work that has gone on

          4  here, and I know the Speaker has been a champion for

          5  civil rights, and this Committee has been leading

          6  the way on civil rights issues.  So thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 And of course, I know that Council

          9  Member Quinn has been pushing this bill, and to have

         10  this come, this hearing happened so quickly after

         11  the budget, is really terrific, so thank you for

         12  that.  Also, this very special week for the Lesbian,

         13  Gay, Bisexual and Transgender community.

         14                 A lot of what I was going to say, of

         15  course, had already been said.  But I think it is

         16  really a terrific idea to recognize domestic

         17  partnerships from other jurisdictions.  It really

         18  will, I think, change the landscape nationally for

         19  recognition of our families.  Also will make New

         20  York City the premier jurisdiction for civil rights,

         21  probably second only to Vermont and what has

         22  happened in Vermont so far.

         23                 I have some issues with domestic

         24  partnership in its inequality with marriage.  For

         25  instance, my partner and I have been together 10
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          2  years, but we do not live together and therefore, we

          3  are not eligible to be domestic partners.  Whereas

          4  if we were married, we could be, we would be able to

          5  share everything, even if we did not live together.

          6  And there is no requirement that married couples

          7  live together.  But under domestic partnership, we,

          8  you know, do have to live together.

          9                 Now if my partner and I had children,

         10  we would most certainly live together, but we choose

         11  not to, and yet, I believe our relationship is as

         12  close and loving as a relationships where the

         13  partners do live together.  So, and I am not sure

         14  how the custom for domestic partnership benefits in

         15  order to get them and be recognized, how the custom

         16  started that you have to live together as opposed to

         17  marriage.  So I think that would be something,

         18  perhaps, the Council could look into.  Because we

         19  would sign up right away, and I guess that could be

         20  put under the category of simplifying domestic

         21  partnership, because you do actually have to prove

         22  that you live together when you go to get your

         23  certificate.

         24                 I like the idea that this bill will,

         25  if passed, will be in the face of DOMA.  I would
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          2  like to send that message as well as make that a

          3  reality for New York City that we are in direct

          4  opposition to what happened with the so- called

          5  Defense of Marriage Act.  And I am also hoping that,

          6  when this legislation is enacted, that it will be an

          7  example for the rest of the nation and encourage

          8  other jurisdictions to provide domestic partnership,

          9  not just registration but also benefits as well.

         10  And if we enacted in an appropriate way, we could

         11  also show how simply it could be put into effect.  So

         12  I think that should be part of it, as well, to make

         13  sure that the process is as streamlined as it

         14  possibly can be.

         15                 Now also the Council has done

         16  tremendous work since the World Trade Center horror.

         17    And you know, I am pleased to say with a

         18  tremendous amount of lobbying on the part of the

         19  City Council, and perhaps in particular, Council

         20  Member Baez, although, Council Member Quinn and her

         21  staff also helped me to track this issue.  That the

         22  City fought very hard to make sure that the benefits

         23  that were not granted, as a result of Mayor

         24  Giuliani's Domestic Partnership Bill.  Which I am

         25  sure you have heard me say before, I disagreed with
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          2  in how it was enacted, because it did, for instance,

          3  leave out line- of- duty death benefits to surviving

          4  domestic partners of those who were killed in the

          5  Trade Center disaster.  But thanks to the work of

          6  Council Member Baez and Council Member Quinn,

          7  Speaker Miller, and bringing that to the attention

          8  to the Legislature, the State Senate passed

          9  legislation, which would provide that benefit, that

         10  line- of- duty death benefit, as well as other

         11  benefits to surviving domestic partners.  And in the

         12  Senate, it was Senator Spano's bill, and I co-

         13  sponsored that legislation with him.  And I am

         14  hopeful, the Assembly is going back into session

         15  this week, that they will pass a companion piece of

         16  legislation and that the Governor will sign it.

         17                 And finally, well there are two

         18  things.  It is interesting to note that in the State

         19  Ethics Forum they ask what my assets are, it is a

         20  very brief response that I give, and then they ask

         21  what my spouse's assets are.  So I always refuse to

         22  answer it, I leave it blank.  And I always have it

         23  sent back to me that I have not completed the form,

         24  but I refuse to complete the form because, you know,

         25  should I report Louis', you know, assets, and if he
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          2  serves on any boards, et cetera, or should I not?  I

          3  am always interested, you know, I used to work on

          4  Wall Street and before our relationships were

          5  recognized in any way, you know, if you sold hot

          6  stock to a spouse, you can get into a lot of

          7  trouble.  But you know, what could they do if you

          8  sold, you know, stock to your, what we then called

          9  our lovers, there really was nothing to do, because

         10  there was no legal way to show a relationship.

         11  Anyway, those days are long gone, and the did put a

         12  guy in jail for that, but only because he broke a

         13  Wall Street Journal, you know, regulation, as

         14  opposed to actually, you know, coming under fire

         15  from the NCC. Anyway, I digressed.  So I leave that

         16  blank on the form.

         17                 And finally, one other thing that I

         18  would like to see happen, and I know that this is a

         19  ways off, but I am always concerned that even though

         20  we have made tremendous strides in the Lesbian, Gay,

         21  Bisexual and Transgender Civil Rights Movement, we

         22  also see that there can be a tremendous backlash.

         23  And while everybody thinks that could never happen

         24  in the United States, I would also like to see some

         25  day, if need be, something that we already have in
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          2  place.  If need be, that people could use New York

          3  City as a sanctuary if they are being discriminated

          4  against or violently, or you know, the victims of

          5  violence in other jurisdictions, that they could

          6  come here to New York City and be protected.  And

          7  similar to what some jurisdictions for refugees from

          8  Latin America during the conflicts there, that New

          9  York City would become a safe haven for people who

         10  were being discriminated against or victimized by

         11  violence in other jurisdictions.

         12                 But again, I want to thank you for

         13  bringing this bill for a hearing.  And I am hopeful

         14  as a result of the testimony you have heard, that

         15  any of the issues that need to be addressed, it is

         16  so wonderful to have a hearing, you know we do not

         17  have things like this in the State.  So it is always

         18  refreshing to actually come and have people listen

         19  to what you say, and craft better legislation as a

         20  result of what the Administration and the public has

         21  to say.

         22                 So thank you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you,

         24  Senator.  I want to commend the idea of New York

         25  City as a sanctuary.  Obviously, in the history of
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          2  this City, it has been one of the great open cities

          3  of the world, and I think you are absolutely right

          4  that there will be backlashes.  And we need to see

          5  ourselves as a place that people can find a

          6  welcoming community.  Also, I would say that the day

          7  when we are able to make marriage a reality, to make

          8  marriage for all people a reality, is a day when we

          9  will also send a signal to the rest of the country

         10  that that is the nature of progress.  And I know you

         11  will be in the forefront when that moment comes.

         12                 But I also just want to say, lastly,

         13  on a biographical note I did not know that you had

         14  worked on Wall Street, and it is amazing to me the

         15  capitalist system is still here, having that

         16  information now.  So...

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  He did not say

         18  he made money on Wall Street, he said he worked on

         19  Wall Street.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Maybe that

         21  explains it.

         22                 SENATOR DUANE:  I was infiltrating

         23  Wall Street.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  That is right.

         25                 SENATOR DUANE:  The revolution.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  The truth

          3  comes out.  Thank you very much, Senator.

          4                 SENATOR DUANE:  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  We also have a

          6  representative of Assembly Member Deborah Glick.

          7  Gary Parker are you here?  There is Gary.  And while

          8  Gary is coming up, I just want to say, if anyone

          9  else is interested in testifying who has not yet

         10  testified, this is your last opportunity to sign up.

         11    Please sign up with the Sergeant- At- Arms,

         12  Sergeant would you wave, Sergeant, wave, there you

         13  go.  Please sign up with the Sergeant- At- Arms if

         14  you have not yet and you wish to testify.

         15                 And we are going to start a two-

         16  minute rule on testimony, because we have to leave

         17  this room in a little more than an hour.  So we are

         18  going to ask that all testimony be held to about two

         19  minutes.  Thank you.

         20                 Gary.

         21                 MR. PARKER:  I would be more than

         22  happy to keep to that two- minute rule.  My name is

         23  Gary Parker.  I am a Social Worker and Community

         24  Liaison for Assembly Member Deborah Glick, who first

         25  wanted me to thank you for allowing me to come here
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          2  and testify on her behalf; and second, apologize

          3  that she could not be here in person.  She is in

          4  Albany, they have extended session in hopes that

          5  they will pass a couple more pieces of legislation

          6  before the day is through.

          7                 I do have a prepared statement here

          8  for you.

          9                  "As the New York State Assembly

         10  Member of presenting Tribeca, SoHo, Union Square and

         11  the Village East and West, I appreciate the

         12  opportunity to comment on Intro. 114- A, which would

         13  amend the Administrative Code and require New York

         14  City to recognize marriages, domestic partnerships

         15  and civil unions lawfully entered into in other

         16  jurisdictions, and would therefore extend all of the

         17  rights and benefits available to registered domestic

         18  partners in New York.

         19                 It is unfortunate that this

         20  legislation is needed in response to the Defense of

         21  Marriage Act, that defines marriage as a union

         22  between one man and one woman and condones states in

         23  the refusal to recognize same sex marriages entered

         24  into in other jurisdictions.

         25                 Currently, New York State does not

                                                            74

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  have domestic partners law, nor does it even ensure

          3  human rights protections for its citizens based on

          4  sexual orientation and gender identity and

          5  expression.

          6                 Recently, the inequities between same

          7  sex domestic partners and their heterosexual

          8  counterparts have been highlighted by the difficulty

          9  experienced by the domestic partners and families of

         10  LGBT victims of the terrorist attacks of September

         11  11th in qualifying for and receiving federal relief.

         12    In response, the New York Legislature has passed a

         13  bill that awaits Governor Pataki's signature.  This

         14  bill seeks to provide statutory guidance with

         15  respect to the ability of domestic partners to

         16  obtain compensation from the Federal Victim

         17  Compensation Fund, thereby allaying the concerns of

         18  the victims families, and avoiding any undue delays

         19  that might otherwise be caused in obtaining guidance

         20  from the courts.  This bill recognizes that domestic

         21  partners should not be excluded from participation

         22  in the Fund.

         23                 Although I am pleased that the

         24  domestic partners of the victims of the terrorist

         25  attacks will be recognized, I am frustrated that
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          2  currently this is the only crime victim situation in

          3  which New York State acknowledges domestic

          4  partnerships.

          5                 I urge this Committee to pass Intro.

          6  114- A and send a clear message that New York City

          7  will legally recognize loving and committed domestic

          8  partnerships from other jurisdictions."

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO;  Thank you very

         11  much, Gary. And please thank Assembly Member Glick

         12  for her wonderful support.

         13                 MR. PARKER:  I will.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  And say that

         15  we are glad she is on the front line in Albany right

         16  now.

         17                 MR. PARKER:  I will do.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Council Member

         19  Quinn.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I just also

         21  wanted to thank, but more importantly, I wanted to

         22  ask my colleagues in the Chambers to help me wish

         23  Gary Parker, a slightly belated, but nonetheless,

         24  Happy Birthday.

         25                 MR. PARKER:  Oh, thank you so much.
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          2  Thank you, I am touched.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  We are a warm

          4  and loving Council.

          5                 All right, our next panel is, James

          6  Loney of the Marriage Equality Project, Ryan Mensing

          7  of Empire State Pride Agenda, and Renee Rotkopf of

          8  The Wedding Party.  Please, step forward.  So each

          9  of you will have two minutes, and you have the clock

         10  over there to help you keep track.  Just please

         11  state your names into the microphone for the record.

         12                 MR. LONEY:  My name is James Loney.

         13  I am the Chairperson of Marriage Equality New York.

         14                 MR. MENSING:  My name is Ryan

         15  Mensing.  I am with the Empire State Pride Agenda.

         16                 MS. ROTKOPF:  Hi, my name is Renee

         17  Rotkopf.  I am the founder of The Wedding Party.

         18                 MR. LONEY:  I think I will, in the

         19  interest of speed, I will jump over my first

         20  paragraph of the prepared statement, but I am deeply

         21  honored to be here today to give some testimony on

         22  same sex marriage rights in New York State.

         23                 Ladies and gentlemen of the Council

         24  and honored guests, on the desk here today you see a

         25  stack of about 800 post cards, collected over the
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          2  past two weeks by Marriage Equality New York for its

          3  post- card campaign to the Governor.  The post cards

          4  front side portrays an elderly same sex couple, who

          5  in their first 53 years together here in New York

          6  City have had two commitment ceremonies and have

          7  also registered as New York City domestic partners.

          8  These men have loved, honored, and cherished each

          9  other, they have held each other through good times

         10  and bad.  They have been vibrant members of New York

         11  City society, contributing to its well being, its

         12  sense of stability, security, and community.

         13                 Through the Domestic Relations Law of

         14  New York, as it is written today, ought to allow

         15  these men to obtain a marriage license.  The State

         16  has repeatedly denied them one.  William and Royal,

         17  thereby, lose the opportunity to cement their

         18  relationship and a web of financial and moral

         19  interdependencies under New York State law.  Now, as

         20  William lies dying of Alzheimer's disease, Royal is

         21  in acute danger of losing his partner's Social

         22  Security and pension benefits, a fate unthinkable

         23  for a heterosexual married couple in a comparable

         24  situation.

         25                 We hope that you agree that these
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          2  post cards are very moving.  To date, Marriage

          3  Equality New York has collected and sent in about

          4  4,000 of these postcards to Governor Pataki's

          5  Office. The cards ask him to write back to the

          6  correspondent and explain why it is that members of

          7  the LGBT community are denied a basic human right,

          8  the right to choose a spouse of his or her choice

          9  without governmental interference.  The cards also

         10  ask the Governor to forward to the correspondents

         11  address, I am sorry, to forward to the

         12  correspondents to his or her State Senator and

         13  Assembly person so that those representatives also

         14  have the opportunity to answer the question.

         15                 Oh, my goodness, could I go on for

         16  one more minute.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  We will look

         18  the other way for a brief conclusion.

         19                 MR. LONEY:  All right.  Why don't I -

         20   -

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  By the way,

         22  the entire statement is entered into the record,

         23  just so you are clear, everyone's statement is

         24  entered into the record.

         25                 MR. LONEY:  Fine, okay.  Let me see,
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          2  let's move down to the bottom of the second page

          3  then.  At Marriage Equality New York, we always try

          4  to think in a generational frame, that is our event

          5  horizon.  We know of no area of life, particularly

          6  is so ambitious a place a New York, where vision

          7  already ends in the foreground.  Intro. 114- A aims

          8  to strengthen legal and moral support for same sex

          9  couples in New York City, and this is laudable.

         10  Nonetheless, we are here today to tell you that this

         11  beginning is only that, and it is to truth decidedly

         12  not enough. New York City and its Council

         13  representing about 40 percent of all New York State

         14  citizens can have an enormous impact on the

         15  Statewide discussion over the legal future of its

         16  LGBT citizens.

         17                 We, therefore, ask you and New York

         18  City Council for the following, in addition to

         19  passing Intro. 114- A:

         20                 1.  That you as Council members begin

         21  today to raise your voice loud and clear in support

         22  of one set of lawsuit for all New York families.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Now I am going

         24  to ask you, really preclude?

         25                 MR. LONEY:  Okay.  Ladies and
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          2  gentlemen of the Council, we look to you for vision

          3  and leadership.  We hope you regard these postcards

          4  and the existence of so many same- sex advocates and

          5  same- sex marriage advocacy groups as a sign of the

          6  times.  The realization and recognition of same- sex

          7  marriage, involving as it does a central human

          8  institution, may require from urinalysis and from

          9  you more energy than the realization of domestic

         10  partnership or civil unions does, morally there is

         11  no way around it.

         12                 Because you represent us, we hope you

         13  hear us and will think carefully about what we need.

         14    Reality has overtaken the law.  Now its time for

         15  the lawgiver to bring the law back to reality.

         16                 Thank you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you.  A

         18  good conclusion, and I think, by the way, it is a

         19  very impressive postcard, it makes the message very

         20  well.

         21                 MR. LONEY:  Yes, thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Okay, next.

         23                 MR. MENSING:  Good morning.  My name

         24  is Ryan Mensing, and I am here on behalf of the

         25  Empire State Pride Agenda, New York's statewide
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          2  lesbian and gay civil rights and political advocacy

          3  organization.  On behalf of our 25,000 members, I am

          4  pleased to be here and speak in support of Intro.

          5  114- A.

          6                 When the City Council passed the

          7  Domestic Partnership Law in 1998, it took a

          8  significant step towards ensuring equal rights and

          9  entitlements for City residents in same sex

         10  relationships.  The proposed amendment to the law

         11  continues this tradition by reaffirming the City's

         12  commitment to eliminating obstacles confronting

         13  individuals in same- sex relationships, regardless

         14  where a particular relationship was originally

         15  registered or recognized.  This amendment grants

         16  domestic partnerships and non- traditional marriages

         17  the full faith and credit afforded traditional

         18  marriages.  Without it, it is altogether too likely

         19  that domestic partners or same- sex spouses would be

         20  denied important benefits simply for not re-

         21  registering the relationship with the City.  We do

         22  not ask those in traditional marriages to re-

         23  register in every jurisdiction, nor should we ask it

         24  of those in same- sex relationships.  Once again,

         25  New York is taking an important step that we hope is
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          2  followed by other jurisdictions nationwide.

          3                 While the Pride Agenda welcomes this

          4  amendment, we also urge the City Council to take the

          5  step previously suggested by Council Member Quinn

          6  towards equal rights, equal entitlements and equal

          7  pay for equal work for all New Yorkers.  New York

          8  could enacted legislation prohibiting City contracts

          9  from being awarded to companies that deny equal

         10  employment benefits, such as Health Insurance to

         11  domestic partners.  San Francisco and other

         12  localities have enacted such legislation, and in so

         13  doing, has sent a clear and consistent message that

         14  tax dollars will not go into the pockets of those

         15  who deny equal pay for equal work.  New York is in a

         16  position to send that same message and the Pride

         17  Agenda encourages the City Council to take a lead

         18  role in doing so.

         19                 The Pride Agenda would like to thank

         20  the City Council for its work on furthering equality

         21  for all its citizens. And we look forward to working

         22  with the City Council to ensure respect and dignity

         23  for all lesbian and gay families.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you.
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          2                 MS. ROTKOPF:  First, I would like to

          3  thank the Council for their support of this bill,

          4  thank you, very much.  My name is Renee Rotkopf and

          5  I am the founder of a non- profit organization

          6  called The Wedding Party.  The Wedding Party is an

          7  organization dedicated to bringing national

          8  awareness to a national issue, the need for equal

          9  marriage rights for same- sex couples. The Wedding

         10  Party holds events that celebrate same- sex love and

         11  commitment, while educating the public, gay and non-

         12  gay, on why civil marriage rights matter.

         13                 I started The Wedding Party

         14  organization out of a need, one societal, and the

         15  other personal.  First, it was for all the countless

         16  same- sex couples who love each and have been

         17  committed to each other in relationship for 10, 20,

         18  30, 40, 50 years, some even with children.  Yet,

         19  they have no rights, no protections as a couple or

         20  as a family unit.  These are hardworking citizens of

         21  this great country, who want the freedom to get

         22  legally married.  They deserve to have the legal

         23  protections and rights that accompany a marriage

         24  license.  They deserve to be treated with the same

         25  respect and dignity as any other couple.  They do
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          2  not want special rights, they want what everyone

          3  else has, and they want equal rights.

          4                 I am actually going to move forward,

          5  because I realize we do not have a lot of time.  On

          6  a personal note, I was married and privy to the

          7  rights and legal protections that come with it.  I

          8  was 24 years old, and married to a man that I loved.

          9  We were together for 9 years, the funny thing is

         10  while we were married, I did not even realize I had

         11  these rights and protections.           One day, we

         12  were in a car accident and he suffered a head

         13  injury, we were rushed to the hospital in an

         14  ambulance where he was treated.  I was then taken

         15  care of very well by the doctors, who explained to

         16  me how to take care of him, and they both showed us

         17  dignity and respect.

         18                 When our marriage ended, I am

         19  presently in love with a woman.  I became quickly so

         20  fully aware of the rights that I had when I was

         21  married to a man, I simply no longer have that

         22  option to access those rights because I am in a

         23  relationship with a woman. I have not changed, I am

         24  still the same person, however, everything has

         25  changed for me.  When I was married to a man, I was

                                                            85

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  a first class citizen, now that I am in a committed

          3  relationship with a woman, I am a second- class

          4  citizen.

          5                 Our Declaration of Independence

          6  states, "All men are created equal and are endowed

          7  with certain unalienable rights, among which are

          8  Life, Liberty, and the pursuit of Happiness."  Now,

          9  we all know they meant women as well, clearly all

         10  people.  I am a hard working tax paying U.S. Citizen

         11  who loves this country for what it stands for.  The

         12  government takes the same money from my paycheck

         13  every week.  I do not want the government telling me

         14  what rights I am or am not entitled to because of

         15  who I decide to spend my life with.  Religious

         16  belief, cultural traditions, and myths are no

         17  excused for discrimination.

         18                 The couples that are registering to

         19  our upcoming Wedding Party Ceremony event on June

         20  30th, the morning of Gay Pride, want full civil

         21  marriage right.  That is why they are coming, to

         22  publicly commit themselves to each other, at least,

         23  in a spiritual sense, and speaking up to say, "Hey,

         24  I am just like you.  I want and deserve the same

         25  rights as you.  Not special rights that set me apart
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          2  from others.  I want the same rights and legal

          3  protections that you have, and I too can care for my

          4  spouse and protect our children."

          5                 We need your full support to

          6  establish equal marriage rights, we must all aim

          7  higher.

          8                 Thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you very

         10  much, that was a very moving testimony, I appreciate

         11  it.

         12                 Council Member Quinn.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you.

         14  Just, there are more statements than questions.  I

         15  wanted to let the panel know that there are a number

         16  of Council members, including Council Member Yassky

         17  and Perkins.  I just called you Perkins.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  We all look

         19  alike.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  That is right,

         21  all those Bill Council members look alike.  Council

         22  Member DeBlasio and Council Member Perkins, and

         23  others for that matter, who are working on a

         24  resolution that would urge the State to pass a same-

         25  sex marriage bill.  It is actually Council Member
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          2  Yassky who is taking the lead on that.

          3                 MR. LONEY:  Excellent, excellent.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  So, but it has

          5  not yet been introduced, it is kind of in process.

          6                 I also wanted to say that the

          7  Domestic Partnership Contracting Bill, the equal

          8  benefits bill, we are rewriting that bill.  And new

          9  Counsel has been assigned to that Committee, who

         10  actually used to be the Counsel for this Committee,

         11  who felt like we needed to tighten it up and make it

         12  stronger, which I was like, you go, you want to make

         13  it better, make it better.  So, we are hoping to, we

         14  had originally wanted to reintroduce that in June,

         15  but it will probably be some time next month.  So,

         16  we will keep folks up to date on that.

         17                 And last, if you think I did not have

         18  something to tell you, actually, I know that Speaker

         19  Miller is trying to clear his Sunday morning so he

         20  can come on Sunday.  It is not 100 percent sure yet,

         21  but the Speaker's Office did reach out to me to ask

         22  whether that would be a good event for him to go to.

         23    I said, I went last year, and thought it would be

         24  great.  He is trying to rework some child care

         25  issues, so hopefully, he will even be able to be at
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          2  the party on Sunday morning.

          3                 MS. ROTKOPF:  That is wonderful.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you

          5  very, very much. Our next panel, let me see, I think

          6  a few people from the next panel may not be here at

          7  this point.  Is Bob Zuckerman here?  No. Tom Ryan?

          8  Anne Cregan?  No, okay, we are going to create a new

          9  panel then.  Brendan Fay, all right, Brendan is

         10  reliable.  And is Brian Cahill here?  And Randy

         11  Bernfeld?  Okay, we have created a panel.  Brendan,

         12  once again, you are in the forefront.

         13                 Please state your name into the

         14  microphone and begin.

         15                 MR. FAY:  My name is Brendan Fay, and

         16  thank you, distinguished members of the City Council

         17  for the opportunity to testify today on Intro. No.

         18  114- A, the local law, which would require the City

         19  to fully recognize any and all domestic partnerships

         20  of the unions and marriages, entered into in other

         21  cities or states.

         22                 On June 6th, 2000, my spouse and life

         23  partner, Tom, and I, made our way to New York City

         24  Hall here and we registered as domestic partners.

         25  It is the nearest thing we actually have to a
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          2  marriage certificate, it actually means a lot to us.

          3    And yet, when it comes to civil rights, this is

          4  minuscule in comparison with our heterosexual

          5  friends, who proudly display their marriage

          6  certificate, just as we proudly our domestic

          7  registration.  Yet, both forms of certificates

          8  reflect the current level of any equality and civil

          9  recognition of same- sex couples.  The current state

         10  of inequality has my partner Tom and I, along with

         11  many of our friends, advocating for more just, not

         12  just for domestic partnership, but for same- sex

         13  marriage.

         14                 Recently, as residents of New York,

         15  our six- year relationship, we have become aware of

         16  the extraordinary hurdles we are required to undergo

         17  simply because we are a same- sex couple. Recently,

         18  we had a meeting with our lawyer to prepare our

         19  wills, health care proxy, and living will

         20  declaration.  It was a strange meeting sitting in

         21  the lawyers office talking about death, donation of

         22  organs, disposing of our earthly possessions,

         23  including even our body parts.  But our lawyer

         24  pointed out to us the serious implications of

         25  current city, state, and federal law.  She was clear
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          2  in alerting us to the hard facts of life, without

          3  the civil recognition, such as marriage of our

          4  relationship.  We had extensive conversation about

          5  rights of inheritance.  The right to make medical

          6  decisions should one of us become incapacitated.  To

          7  gather in this place in City Hall, the people's hall

          8  and hold a hearing such as this, it is only

          9  appropriate in this place and in this time, because

         10  we are remembering Stonewall when people dreamed of

         11  equality and ended discrimination and took the

         12  necessary steps. People dreamed of recognition of

         13  our relationships, took the necessary steps and

         14  passed Domestic Partnership Law.  This is yet

         15  another step forward, a major step, move quickly so

         16  that one day we may yet enjoy civil marriage just

         17  like everybody else and throughout the State.

         18                 And I will leave you with one little

         19  token, people in other places have done that in the

         20  Netherlands on April 1st, 2000, and one where law

         21  was passed where all can enjoy civil marriage.  A

         22  group of us gathered at the Dutch Consulate to

         23  celebrate that and look forward, maybe when New

         24  Amsterdam could be like Amsterdam and that we would

         25  all enjoy it.  And we took away a momentum of that,
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          2  a pair of clogs.  And I leave them with you that

          3  maybe in the Welfare Board that you might hang these

          4  clogs up as a symbol of that until we celebrate

          5  maybe, for Tom and I, and others can go and

          6  register, not just as domestic partners, but for

          7  civil marriage.

          8                 Thanks a million.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you.

         10  And before the rest of the panel, and we have had so

         11  many wonderful people participating today, but

         12  Brendan I have to, I just have to note that wherever

         13  I see something meaningful happen, I see you there.

         14  I remember when the Brooklyn, Saint Patrick's Parade

         15  was not inclusive, and you were there leading a

         16  protest against that, and I was honored to join you.

         17    And I remember when the first Queen Saint

         18  Patrick's Day Parade was created to be inclusive,

         19  and I had the honor of being there, when I worked

         20  for Senator Clinton at that time.  And I just want

         21  to commend you for your, not only your activism, but

         22  your positive spirit that really brings people to

         23  the movement.  So thank you.

         24                 MR. FAY:  Wonderful, thank you so

         25  much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Next, please.

          3                 MS. BERNFELD:  Honorable Chairman and

          4  speakers, I am here on behalf of the Lesbian and Gay

          5  Law Association of Greater New York.  LEGAL who

          6  appreciates having this opportunity to address you

          7  concerning the expansion of rights for LGBT couples.

          8    LEGAL is a Bar Association with over 400 members.

          9  Our members have been in the forefront of creating

         10  protections for LGBT people, as individuals and

         11  couples.

         12                 However, we know that there are some

         13  in this affected population, who might not even be

         14  aware of these efforts. In truth, in the absence of

         15  legal recognition, we are left with a patchwork of

         16  contracts or agreements, Wills and powers of

         17  attorney, name changes, adoptions of children,

         18  property agreements, property settlements, to name

         19  some, and many people cannot even afford these.

         20                 LEGAL support Intro. 114- A as an

         21  expansion of rights to LGBT couples.  We know that

         22  the benefit here is more symbolic than real, but we

         23  also believe that any expansion of such rights is

         24  welcome.

         25                 We urge this body to enact additional

                                                            93

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  legislation to expand the rights of LGBT couples

          3  following today's step in the right direction.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you,

          5  very clear and concise, we commend you.  Thank you.

          6                 Mr. CAHILL:  You and your spouse have

          7  moved to New York City after months of planning.  If

          8  you are a married couple, you have not even thought

          9  about the legal status of your relationship, because

         10  it is automatically recognized when you arrive in

         11  your new home.  If, however, you are a member of a

         12  same sex couple, protecting your relationship

         13  becomes a high priority and high- stressed

         14  complication.

         15                 My name is Brian Cahill, and I am a

         16  Research Fellow at the Policy Institute of the

         17  National Gay and Lesbian Task Force. Revising the

         18  definition of domestic partners through Intro. 114-

         19  A is good public policy, good business and good

         20  politics.

         21                 Expanding the definition of domestic

         22  partners is good public policy, because a healthy

         23  city is made up of healthy people.  New York City

         24  should encourage gay and lesbian families to stay

         25  together and support them as they raise their
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          2  children, not forgetting that couples without

          3  children are also families.  Secure families nurture

          4  productive, physically and mentally healthy citizens

          5  who add to the financial well being of the city,

          6  rather than draw from it.

          7                 Expanding the definition of domestic

          8  partners is good business, because our City has

          9  always thrived by attracting the best and brightest

         10  of every field.  Especially now, we want to

         11  encourage talented people to move to our city

         12  without worrying that they will sacrifice the

         13  security of their family relationships.

         14                 Expanding the definition of domestic

         15  partners is good politics, because most Americans

         16  support equality for gay and lesbian couples when it

         17  comes to benefits like Social Security and

         18  inheritance rights.  A 2001 poll revealed that 60

         19  percent of New York City residents support

         20  legalizing same- sex marriage.  Among those 18 to

         21  34, that support jumps to 73 percent.

         22                 A family, no matter its composition,

         23  is no less a family in one place than another.  When

         24  a gay or lesbian couple has carefully constructed a

         25  legal relationship, their efforts should not be made
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          2  null and void simply because they move to New York

          3  City.  Expanding New York City's definition of

          4  domestic partner is good for them and good for New

          5  York.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  I want to

          8  thank you.  I just want to note, doesn't Brian have

          9  an astoundingly believable voice? I think he should

         10  be the voice of the movement.  Would you do my radio

         11  ads for me?

         12                 MR. CAHILL:  Fantastic.  I will leave

         13  you my card.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  A career in

         15  voice - -

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  It was really

         17  amazing, I felt like buying real estate from him.  I

         18  just felt I had to.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  No campaign

         20  speeches.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  No campaign

         22  speeches.  We want to welcome Council Member Gale

         23  Brewer, and Council Member Kendall Stewart was with

         24  us briefly earlier before.

         25                 Thank you very much, members of the
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          2  panel, we appreciate it.

          3                 And I think we have one, maybe two

          4  more panels.  The next panel is, and we will, we

          5  will hang the ceremonial clogs at the instruction of

          6  Brendan in our office.  This will be our conscience.

          7    The next panel is Martine Barbier, Terry Boggis,

          8  Reverend Pat Bumgardner, and Patrick Duncan, if

          9  Patrick is here. Step forward, please.  I cannot do

         10  that voice Brian does, please, step forward, it is

         11  your chance to testify.  Okay, is Patrick here? No,

         12  okay, great.  Please state your name into the

         13  microphone and begin.

         14                 MS. BARBIER:  Hello, okay, I would

         15  like to thank the Council members for their

         16  recognition - -

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  State your

         18  name.

         19                 MS. BARBIER:  Oh, I am sorry.  Thank

         20  you.  I am Martine Barbier.  I am the Clinical

         21  Manager for Domestic Violence and Sexual Assault at

         22  the Anti- Violence Project.  And I would like to

         23  thank the Council members for their recognition of

         24  this concern as it affects the gay and lesbian

         25  community, in the spirit of Gay Pride.  Thank you.
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          2                 AVP is the nation's largest crime-

          3  victim service agency for the lesbian, gay,

          4  transgender, bisexual, and HIV affected communities.

          5    AVP has strived to educate the public about

          6  violence against or within communities, and works to

          7  reform public policies affecting all lesbians, gay,

          8  bisexual, transgender, and HIV- affected peoples.

          9                 We continue to address these issues

         10  in the context of inequities that members of our

         11  community face when seeking to obtain entitlements

         12  enjoyed by other groups.  I speak to you today, in

         13  support of proposed Intro. 114- A regarding same-

         14  sex domestic partnership and civil unions.

         15                 We believe that same- sex couples who

         16  have entered a domestic partnership or civil union

         17  should enjoy all rights and benefits issued to

         18  heterosexual married couples, and we urge that you

         19  move this local law into effect immediately.

         20                 At AVP where we work with victims of

         21  domestic violence, we encounter the importance the

         22  recognition of domestic partnership would provide to

         23  same- sex couples, if it were acknowledged in Family

         24  Court.  Married domestic violence victims need only

         25  to present their fear for their safety in Family
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          2  Court to access an Order of Protection.  While is

          3  stark contrast, their same- sex counterparts must

          4  suffer a felony level assault to qualify a civil

          5  order of protection through the criminal court.

          6                 In the aftermath of September 11th,

          7  the inequities we faced were compounded as we sought

          8  assistance for our clients for emergency relief

          9  agencies, whose definition of a committed

         10  relationship posed numerous barriers in accessing

         11  much needed financial support for surviving

         12  partners.  Without a marriage certificate, their

         13  relationships did not exist or matter.

         14                 Overall, New York City has attempted

         15  to give those eligible for domestic partnership as

         16  many rights as those, and protections available to

         17  married people, and we encourage these attempts to

         18  be continued and expanded.  Your decision on this

         19  proposed bill will affect the lives of many New

         20  Yorkers.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 MS. BOGGIS:  My name is Terry Boggis.

         23    I am the Director of Center Kids, the family

         24  program at the Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and

         25  Transgender Community Center located here in
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          2  Manhattan on West 13th Street.  Center Kids serves

          3  over 2,500 households in the tri- state area, the

          4  vast majority within the five boroughs of New York

          5  City.  Most of us are lesbian, gay, bisexual,

          6  transgender parents, with children.  I feel

          7  confident that I speak for those families today.

          8                 Five years ago, almost to the day, on

          9  June 2nd, 1997, I testified before the New York City

         10  Council in support of a broad, comprehensive

         11  domestic partnership bill, rather than a simple

         12  enactment into law of the registry.  A registry

         13  where my own name has been listed since 1994.  I

         14  returned a year later in June 1998 to voice my

         15  support of Intro. 303- A, a measure intended to

         16  strengthen and broaden domestic partnership in

         17  benefits in New York City.  I hope I will soon, and

         18  according to Council Member Quinn, I will, I hope I

         19  will soon have the opportunity to testify in support

         20  of a bill requiring contractors doing business with

         21  New York to provide domestic partnership benefits to

         22  their employees. Today I am honored to be here to

         23  speak in support of Intro. 114- A.

         24                 I first wish to express our gratitude

         25  to City Council Member Chris Quinn for her years of
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          2  fierce, outspoken and unflagging dedication to the

          3  enactment of far- reaching domestic partnership

          4  legislation in New York City, and for never

          5  suggesting that second best was good enough.  I

          6  thank other progressive leaders on the City Council

          7  for your support as well, certainly, our sister and

          8  brother, Margarita Lopez and Phil Reed, and our

          9  staunch allies Gifford Miller and Bill DeBlasio, and

         10  the other allies, sponsors and supporters of this

         11  bill.

         12                 Both as director of the Center Kids

         13  and as a New York City lesbian mother, who lost my

         14  domestic partnership and co parent to cancer, who

         15  resides in HPD housing, whose son just graduated

         16  last week from public middle school in Manhattan,

         17  who just got into Bronx Science, okay.  I strongly

         18  state my advocacy for this bill, and any other that

         19  serves to strengthen support and validate familiar

         20  relationships as we choose to define them.

         21                 This bill is about the removal of

         22  barriers.  Those of us who were present at the

         23  recent city and state hearings on the plight of

         24  surviving partners of 9/11 victims, were reminded

         25  most painfully of the endless obstacles facing

                                                            101

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  surviving partners.  Our paper work, filings and

          3  documentation necessary to prove the fact of our

          4  relationships are endless and oppressive.  The World

          5  Trade Center disaster reminded us acutely of the

          6  importance of transferability of benefits, of

          7  relationship recognition that crosses jurisdictions,

          8  and the necessity of a shared list of variable that

          9  we all can agree define a family in 2002.  Intro.

         10  114- A will help, giving newcomers to New York with

         11  recognized relationships elsewhere automatic access

         12  other the rights of New York City domestic partners.

         13                 I qualify my support only with the

         14  exhortation of this Council to press forward still

         15  more inclusive and enlightened law that recognizes

         16  and supports non- traditional families as valued

         17  contributors to the New York spectrum of citizenry.

         18                 The goal for lesbian, gay, bisexual

         19  and transgender families is protection, --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  I hate to

         21  interrupt, but I like, please, please conclude,

         22  because we are running out of time.

         23                 MS. BOGGIS:  It is three more lines.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Okay.

         25                 MS. BOGGIS:  The goal for our
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          2  families is protection, access, and justice under

          3  the law.  We support Intro. 114- A, and look forward

          4  to helping the leadership of this progressive City

          5  Council with the ongoing work necessary for its

          6  realization.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you very

          9  much. Reverend.

         10                 REV. BUMGARDNER:  My name is Pat

         11  Bumgardner, and I am the Pastor of Metropolitan

         12  Community Church of New York.  As we know,

         13  heterosexual couples legally marry and moving to New

         14  York City from another jurisdiction, simply pack up

         15  their rights and take them with them.  Such is not

         16  the case for this civilly united or recognized under

         17  another jurisdiction's domestic partnership

         18  regulations.  Today's proposal would simply correct

         19  that inequity, and I urge its passage on the grounds

         20  of what is both fair and morally right.

         21                 Having said that, I think it is

         22  important for you to realize that this action will

         23  constitute only one small step toward full equality

         24  for persons in lesbian, gay, bisexual or transgender

         25  unions, partnerships, and marriages.
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          2                 I am sure you have heard many stories

          3  by now, but I want to tell the story of two of my

          4  parishioners, because I believe their suffering goes

          5  to the heart of what really needs to be done

          6  locally, on a state level, and nationally for queer

          7  people.

          8                 Renee Barrett was a member of MCCNY.

          9  Her name now appears on the roster at the walkway to

         10  the site not far from here. She and her life partner

         11  were married in a ceremony at the Church, after

         12  several years of relationship during which time they

         13  secured a home and raised a child.  On September

         14  11th of last year, Renee kissed her lover goodbye on

         15  the morning train, as she always did, and went to

         16  work at Canter Fitzgerald.  As her lover finished

         17  the ride into Midtown, the elevator doors on the

         18  86th floor of Tower One, where Renee was changing

         19  embankments, blew off in burst of flame that raveled

         20  up Renee's back, over her head and down her torso

         21  and legs.  Miraculously she was led out of the

         22  building and remained conscious long enough to give

         23  the paramedics her lover's name and contact

         24  information.  As far as we know, those were the last

         25  words she spoke.
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          2                 For a month and three days, Renee

          3  remained in a coma, until she died of her injuries

          4  on a night when hospital staff refused to allow the

          5  life partner Renee named as next of kin to stay

          6  over.  Her body was released to estranged, but

          7  biologically related kin, before Enez could race to

          8  the hospital the following morning.  While the

          9  biological family held a traditional funeral with a

         10  body to view and bury, Renee's life partner held a

         11  Memorial Service with pictures in the Church Renee

         12  had attended and been an active part of.  Those who

         13  had refused to recognize who she was in life, had

         14  full access to her possessions and subsequent

         15  benefits in death.  Her partner, whom she named on

         16  her deathbed, lost her home and all access other the

         17  child they had raised together.

         18                 In my humble opinion, it is long past

         19  time for legislative bodies to stop being so

         20  concerned about what goes on between the sheets, and

         21  start being concerned about what goes on in our

         22  streets, and in our hospitals, and in our

         23  courtrooms.  It is time to be concerned for the

         24  equitable and just treatment of all households and

         25  familial relationships.
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          2                 I realize that today's legislation,

          3  strictly speaking, does not apply to the case cited.

          4    But I think it is important for you to understand

          5  what the people I serve are up against every single

          6  day, and to gain some perspective on how little is

          7  really being asked of you at this juncture.  To pass

          8  Intro. 114- A is simply to say that a same gender

          9  couple united in a civil union or as domestic

         10  partners in a jurisdiction outside New York City,

         11  could, God forbid the situation arise, have basic

         12  things like hospital visitation rights, the right to

         13  make health care decisions, and the right to claim a

         14  body.  Those things are so basic to life partners,

         15  they do not even seem worth debating, but regularly

         16  are debated when it comes to same gender life

         17  partners.

         18                 I have married both straight and

         19  queer couples. The only difference is, that at the

         20  end of the ceremony for one, I can mail in a piece

         21  of paper that will grant them legal protections and

         22  rights wherever they go in this country, and for the

         23  other I cannot.  I harbor no illusions that God

         24  blesses both equally, but neither am I naive about

         25  how far that blessing will currently extend from a
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          2  legal or legislative perspective.

          3                 I urge you today, to simply take one

          4  more step in promoting justice and equality,

          5  fairness and protection for all relational

          6  configurations in our city; and by so doing to set

          7  the standard for cities and jurisdictions around

          8  this country.

          9                 Thank you for your time and

         10  attention.  I prayer that God continue to bless you

         11  and the work you have been called to do.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO;  Thank you very

         13  much, Reverend.  It is an extraordinarily moving

         14  story, and it is almost shocking to think that we

         15  have all worked, and especially you have worked to

         16  provide protections to people, and how helpless

         17  someone can still be, because we have not gone far

         18  enough.

         19                 Thank you.  Thank you to the whole

         20  panel for being with us.

         21                 We have one last panel today. I want

         22  to thank everyone, who has participated and thank

         23  you for your patience in giving everyone an

         24  opportunity to speak.  The last panel is Christina

         25  Hayworth, Rolando Bini, John Moran, and Dominican
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          2  Pisciotta.  Okay, please state your name into the

          3  microphone and begin.

          4                 MR. MORAN:  My name is John Moran.  I

          5  am from Queens, I was not planning on testifying

          6  here today, until I saw Dennis Gallagher, a member

          7  of your Committee, and I felt moved to testify on

          8  behalf of all the many, many people in Queens,

          9  including myself, that will benefit from passage of

         10  this legislation.

         11                 I am the President of the Lesbian and

         12  Gay Democratic Club of Queens.  I am a member of the

         13  Board of the Queens Lesbian and Gay Pride Committee,

         14  which for the last 10 years has attracted tens of

         15  thousands of people to the first Gay Pride

         16  Celebration in New York City, which takes place on

         17  the first Sunday of June.

         18                 I want to take this opportunity to

         19  thank Christine Quinn for all her work.  I am

         20  personally aware on her work on the domestic partner

         21  contracting legislation, which I consider essential,

         22  after this business is taken care of.

         23                 In addition, I wanted to point to the

         24  Council members here that there is one category of

         25  worker in New York City, government worker that does
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          2  not share in the domestic partner benefits the City

          3  workers do.  I became aware of this when, a few

          4  years ago, a friend of mine told me that he was a

          5  member of the Transport Workers Union, and that when

          6  he went to file domestic partner benefits on behalf

          7  of his partner for health insurance, he was denied.

          8  I am sure you are all aware of this, and I hope some

          9  day that this matter will be addressed.

         10                 So again, thank you for everything

         11  you have done. And also, let me thank, in

         12  particular, Speaker Gifford Miller, it is a

         13  tremendous, tremendous feeling to walk into this

         14  building and know that we do not have an uphill

         15  battle, as has always been the case up to this

         16  point.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you.  It

         19  is a good feeling here now, and we are all lucky.

         20  Let me just say one more time that Dominic Pisciotta

         21  and Rolando Bini, if you are in the room, this is

         22  the last call.  Okay, Ms. Hayworth.

         23                 MS. HAYWORTH:  Thank you.  My name

         24  is, for your record, Christina Hayworth.  I am a

         25  Stonewall Survivor of the First Knight.  I seem to
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          2  have a problem, and I do not understand it very

          3  well, perhaps you can clarify this for me.  I come

          4  up to New York every year for the parade, and we are

          5  taken down Fifth Avenue and everybody claims to say

          6  Stonewall and Stonewall, but very few things are

          7  said about what a marriage should be between two

          8  people of the same sex.  Should not it be as normal

          9  as just taking a glass of water and drinking?

         10  Should not it be as simple as going to the bathroom?

         11    Should not it be as simple as just sitting down

         12  and saying hello, honey, how are you doing, is

         13  everything all right? Giving a kiss?  Then why is it

         14  we are in the press, even in Puerto Rico, where I

         15  live, and I have to hear all of this.  Where a

         16  grandfather is raping a 12 or 11- year- old girl,

         17  grandfather.  Where a newly wed woman with children,

         18  now her husband is raping the kids.  Then you hear

         19  schoolteachers, lawyers, dentists, and all of a

         20  sudden, you hear priests are raping kids.  It is

         21  against the law for everybody else.  But it is okay

         22  for the Cardinal, himself, to get away with it.

         23  Screw the priests.

         24                 Then I do not understand the people

         25  that are supposedly taking care of all of these
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          2  rights, which is you people up here, I do not know

          3  you, I know of you.  I have seen your work. I can

          4  say I have come a long way from Tipperary

          5  (phonetic), from the Stonewall Bar to this building

          6  with you people inside, for which I am extremely

          7  proud.  I could not ask for anything more in 33

          8  years.  But I am mad that your Governor is not here

          9  to say, hello, to say, you do have the right,

         10  because politically his pork barrel money has been

         11  going elsewhere, and not for the rights of you

         12  people.  And the same thing fills it up for your

         13  legislators. That is a pretty sad thing.

         14                 I think if anyone in this community,

         15  as only as an observer, I did not come back to New

         16  York to pick up the flag and say I am a Stonewall

         17  Survivor.  But I will say this, my observation tells

         18  me that lady over there, the Reverend Pat Bumgardner

         19  should be one of your leaders in this community.

         20  And if anyone has to speak on behalf of same- sex

         21  marriages with a little bit of dignity and

         22  understanding that even your Governor would have to

         23  listen too.

         24                 Although the other guy had a good

         25  voice sweeping and he might be good for your
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          2  campaign, I think that is the person there to do it

          3  for all of you.

          4                 And with that, I really do not have

          5  much to say. God bless, and if I need any help, with

          6  this sort of thing in Puerto Rico, may I call upon

          7  you to fly down and help me?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  You can always

          9  call upon us.

         10                 MS. HAYWORTH:  It does not mean you

         11  are going to help me, does it?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Oh, you would

         13  be surprised. It's a trip to Puerto Rico.

         14                 MS. HAYWORTH:  Darling, with your

         15  lips I would make sure you get a free hotel room.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  Thank you,

         17  thank you very much.

         18                 MS. HAYWORTH:  Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEBLASIO:  I want to

         20  thank this panel. I want to thank everyone who has

         21  been here today.  And we have more work to do to

         22  make this a reality, and then much more to do after

         23  this, but I continue to see the progress.

         24                 I want to thank Council Member Quinn,

         25  Council Member Brewer, Council Member Stewart,
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          2  Council Member Serrano, everyone who participated

          3  today.  And please, work with us over these next

          4  months, let's pass this law and let's go on from

          5  there.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 MS. HAYWORTH:  Thank you for being

          8  there for us.

          9                 (Hearing adjourned at 12:25 p.m.)

         10                 (The following testimony was read

         11  into the record.)

         12

         13  Testimony of:

         14  James R. Loney

         15  Chairperson

         16  Marriage Equality New York (MENY)

         17

         18                 As Chairperson of Marriage Equality

         19  New York, I would like to thank you for permitting

         20  our group to address you today regarding the

         21  Introduction of 114- A before New York City Council.

         22    Marriage Equality New York welcomes the Council's

         23  readiness to revisit the idea that same- sex couples

         24  deserve more legal and moral support than municipal

         25  and state law currently offer.  For this reason, we
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          2  are here to inform you of our support regarding the

          3  Introduction of this bill, but also to express some

          4  reservations.

          5                 On the desk here today, you see a

          6  stack of about 800 postcards, collected over the

          7  past two weeks by Marriage Equality New York for its

          8   "Postcard Campaign to the Governor."  The

          9  postcards' front side portrays an elderly same- sex

         10  couple, who, in their 53 years together here in New

         11  York City, has had two commitment ceremonies, and

         12  has also registered as New York City Domestic

         13  Partners.  These men have loved, honored, and

         14  cherished each other; they have helped each other

         15  through good times and bad. They helped America win

         16  a World War.  They pay their taxes every year.  They

         17  have been vibrant members of New York City society,

         18  contributing to its well being, and to its sense of

         19  stability, security, and community.  Though the

         20  Domestic Relations Law of New York as it is written

         21  today ought to allow these men to obtain a marriage

         22  license, the State has repeatedly denied one to

         23  them. Royal and William thereby lose the opportunity

         24  to cement their relationship and a web of financial

         25  and moral interdependencies under New York State
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          2  law.  Now, as William lies dying of Alzheimer's

          3  disease, Royal is in acute danger of losing his

          4  partner's Social Security and pension benefits, a

          5  fate unthinkable for a heterosexual married couple

          6  in a comparable situation.  Both men's future at the

          7  Residence where they live is endangered by the lack

          8  of same- sex marriage.

          9                 We hope you agree these postcards are

         10  very moving. To date, Marriage Equality New York has

         11  collected and sent in about 4,000 of these postcards

         12  to Governor Pataki's office.  The cards ask him to

         13  write back to the correspondent and explain why it

         14  is that members of the LGBT community are denied a

         15  basic human right, the right to choose the spouse of

         16  his or her choice without governmental interference.

         17    The cards also ask the Governor to forward the

         18  correspondent's address to his or her State Senator

         19  and Assembly person, so that those representatives

         20  also have the opportunity to answer this question.

         21  To date, with the exception of one response from the

         22  Chairperson of the State Republican Party, we know

         23  of not one single response to the many thousands of

         24  cards, which have been sent.  Nonetheless,  we are

         25  undeterred.  We expect to gather a thousand more
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          2  postcards this coming weekend at Manhattan Pride,

          3  and we fully intend to continue inundating the

          4  Governor's office with another 5,000 postcards

          5  before Election Day, next November 5th.

          6                 Ladies and Gentlemen of the Council,

          7  I ask you to regard this stack of postcards as a

          8  kind of referendum in progress on what most moves

          9  the LGBT community you serve in New York City. As

         10  you can see with your own eyes, large numbers of the

         11  community in New York are already thinking far

         12  beyond the sphere of a DP or DP+ or the artificial

         13  construct called a "Civil Union.  Reality is

         14  overtaking the law.  A community, at long last,

         15  beginning to think of itself as authentic, tender,

         16  equal, strong, free, and permanent will not

         17  lastingly tolerate a separate, inexplicably unequal

         18  status before the law.  Meanwhile, many of our

         19  elected leaders fall silent, or shrug off our

         20  demands as "untimely" or "excessive," or aim to put

         21  into place a body of civil union law, which would

         22  brand us literally as "out- laws" in our own state

         23  for a generation to come.

         24                 At Marriage Equality New York, we try

         25  to always think in a generational time frame; that
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          2  is our event horizon.  We know of no area of life,

          3  particularly in so ambitious a place as New York,

          4  where "vision" ends already in the foreground.

          5  Intro. 114- A aims to strengthen legal and moral

          6  support for same- sex couples in New York City, and

          7  this is laudable.  Nonetheless, we are here today to

          8  tell you that this beginning is only that, and is,

          9  in truth, decidedly not enough.  New York City and

         10  its Council, representing about 40 percent of all

         11  New York State citizens, can have an enormous impact

         12  in the statewide discussion over the legal future of

         13  its LGBT citizens.  We therefore ask you and New

         14  York City Council for the following, in addition to

         15  passing of 114- A:

         16                 1.  That you, as Council members,

         17  begin today to raise your voice loud and clear in

         18  support of the idea of "one set of laws for ALL New

         19  York families."  And that you publicly affirm that

         20  you will work to see that same- sex marriage become

         21  reality in this state within five years;

         22                 2.  That the Council, or some of its

         23  members present here today, write an official letter

         24  to the Attorney General of New York State, The

         25  Honorable Elliot Spitzer, requesting him to
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          2  immediately inform his County Clerks that nothing in

          3  New York State law prevents the issuing of marriage

          4  licenses to same- sex couples; and finally,

          5                 3.  That, in addition to passing 114-

          6  A, the New York City Council pass a resolution this

          7  year demanding that New York State live up to the

          8  provisions of the Domestic Relations Law currently

          9  on the books, which (if applied as written) already

         10  grant same- sex couples the right to obtain marriage

         11  licenses like any other New York State citizen.

         12                 Ladies and Gentlemen of the Council,

         13  we look to you for vision and for leadership.  We

         14  hope that you regard these postcards and the

         15  existence of so many same- sex marriage advocates

         16  and same- sex marriage advocacy groups as a sign of

         17  the times.  The realization and recognition of same-

         18  sex marriage, involving as it does a central human

         19  institution, may require from us and from you more

         20  energy than the realization of DP or Civil Unions.

         21  But there is morally no way around it.

         22                 Because you represent us, we hope you

         23  hear us and will think carefully about what we need.

         24    Reality has overtaken the law.  Now its time for

         25  the lawgiver to help us bring the law back to
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          2  reality.

          3                 Thank you very much.

          4

          5  Testimony of:

          6  Ryan Mensing

          7  Empire State Pride Agenda

          8

          9                 Good morning, I am Ryan Mensing, and

         10  I am here on behalf of the Empire State Pride

         11  Agenda, New York's statewide lesbian and gay civil

         12  rights and political advocacy organization. On

         13  behalf of our 25,000 members across New York State,

         14  I am pleased to be here and speak in support of

         15  Intro. 114- A, a measure to amend New York City's

         16  Domestic Partnership Law to recognize marriages,

         17  domestic partnerships and civil unions lawfully

         18  entered into in other jurisdictions, but not fully

         19  recognized by New York State.

         20                 When the City Council passed the New

         21  York City Domestic Partnership Law in 1998, it took

         22  a significant step towards ensuring equal rights and

         23  entitlements for city residents in long- term same-

         24  sex relationships.  The proposed amendment to the

         25  Domestic Partnership Law continues this tradition by
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          2  reaffirming New York City's commitment to

          3  eliminating the obstacles confronting individuals in

          4  same- sex relationships, regardless of where a

          5  particular relationship was originally registered or

          6  recognized.

          7                 By amending the Domestic Partnership

          8  Law to include couples registered or recognized in

          9  other jurisdictions, New York City will grant

         10  domestic partnerships and non- traditional marriages

         11  the full faith and credit afforded traditional

         12  marriages.  Without this amendment, it is altogether

         13  too likely that domestic partners or same- sex

         14  spouses would be denied important benefits simply

         15  for not re- registering their relationship with the

         16  City of New York. We do not ask those in traditional

         17  marriages to re- register in every jurisdiction in

         18  order to ensure legal recognition of their

         19  relationship, nor should we ask that of those in

         20  same- sex relationships.  Once again, the City of

         21  New York has taken a much needed step that we can

         22  only hope is followed by other jurisdictions

         23  throughout the United States.

         24                 While the Pride Agenda welcomes this

         25  amendment to the Domestic Partnership Law, we also
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          2  urge the City Council to take the additional step

          3  previously suggested by Council Member Quinn that

          4  would serve as tremendous progress towards equal

          5  rights, equal entitlements and equal pay for equal

          6  work for all New Yorkers.  New York could enacted

          7  legislation that would prohibit city contracts form

          8  being awarded to companies that deny equal

          9  employment benefits such as health insurance to

         10  domestic partners.  San Francisco, Oakland and other

         11  localities have enacted such legislation, and in

         12  doing so have sent a clear message that tax dollars

         13  will not go into the pockets of those who deny equal

         14  pay for equal work.  New York City is in a position

         15  to send that same message, and the Pride Agenda

         16  encourages the City Council to take a lead role in

         17  doing so.

         18                 The Pride Agenda would like to thank

         19  the City Council for its work on furthering equality

         20  for all its citizens. We look forward to working

         21  with the City Council to ensure respect and dignity

         22  for all lesbian and gay families.

         23

         24  Testimony of:

         25  Renee Rotkopf
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          2  Founder

          3  The Wedding Party

          4

          5                 My name is Renee Rotkopf.  I am the

          6  founder of a non- profit organization called The

          7  Wedding Party.  The Wedding Party is an organization

          8  dedicated to bringing national awareness to a

          9  national issue, the need for equal marriage rights

         10  for same sex couples.  The Wedding Party holds

         11  events that celebrate same sex love and commitment,

         12  while educating the public, gay and non gay, on why

         13  civil marriage rights matter.

         14                 I started The Wedding Party

         15  organization out of need, one societal, and the

         16  other need personal.  First, it was for all the

         17  countless same- sex couples who love each other and

         18  have been committed to each other in relationship

         19  for 10, 20, 30, 40 and 50 years, some even with

         20  children, yet, they have no rights or protections as

         21  a couple or a family unit.  These are hard working

         22  citizens of this great country who want the freedom

         23  to get legally married.  The deserve to have the

         24  legal protections and rights that accompany a

         25  marriage license.  They deserve to be treated with
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          2  the same respect and dignity as any other couple.

          3  They do not want special rights, they want what

          4  everyone else has, the want equal rights.

          5                 Last September 11th, we saw the

          6  ravages of hate.  We witnessed thousands of people

          7  perish in front of our very eyes.  On September

          8  11th, there was no distinction between gay and non-

          9  gay. We were New Yorkers.  We were Americans.  We

         10  were human being, and some of us lost our lives and

         11  others lost our loved ones.  The surviving partners

         12  of those who perished that were in same- sex

         13  relationships, lost even more.  Some of them, lost

         14  their homes, their income and their children.  Today

         15  nine months after the event, there are many widowed

         16  gay and lesbian partners in the courts, spending all

         17  of their money, trying to be heard.  Fighting to be

         18  recognized as a legal spouse and as a valid family

         19  unit, entitled to the same protections, benefits,

         20  and resources that any other victim's husband or

         21  wife is entitled, and trying to salvage the life

         22  that they and their deceased partner built together.

         23  Nothing can compensate the loss of a loved one.

         24  Adding insult to injury, gay and lesbian couples

         25  face the indignity of not having any rights or
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          2  protections in the face of a tragedy.

          3                 Domestic Partnership is limited and

          4  so is Civil Union.  While both are a step in the

          5  right direction, they are not enough.  We want, we

          6  need and we deserve full and total equality.

          7                 On a personal note, I was once

          8  married and privy to the rights and legal

          9  protections that come with it.  I was 24 years- old,

         10  and married to a man that I loved.  We were together

         11  for nine years.  The funny thing is while we were

         12  married, I did not even know I had these rights and

         13  protections.  I did not have to think about it,

         14  because they were automatic.

         15                 One day, we were in a car accident,

         16  and he suffered a head injury.  We were rushed to

         17  the hospital in an ambulance, where he was treated.

         18  I was with him the whole time, and the doctors were

         19  very kind other both of us, knowing the fear and

         20  pain we were experiencing.  They educated me how to

         21  take care of him while he was recovering.

         22                 Our marriage ended, and now, I am in

         23  love with a woman.  And I became quickly and so

         24  fully aware of the rights I had when I was married

         25  to a man simply because I no longer have that option
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          2  to access those rights because now I am in a

          3  relationship with a woman.  I have not changed, I am

          4  still the same person, however, everything has

          5  changed for me, when I was married to a man, I was a

          6  first class citizen.  Now, that I am in a committed

          7  relationship with a woman, I am a second class

          8  citizen.

          9                 I do not want to be treated

         10  differently.  I want equality.  I want the choice to

         11  have the same rights and legal protections that any

         12  other non- gay couple is automatically entitled to

         13  with marriage.  I want the same rights I had when I

         14  was married to a man.  Anything less is

         15  discrimination.

         16                 Our Declaration of Independence

         17  states: "All men are created equal and are endowed

         18  with certain unalienable rights, among which are

         19  Life, Liberty and the pursuit of Happiness."  Now,

         20  we all know they meant women as well, clearly all

         21  people.  I am a hard- working tax paying U.S.

         22  Citizen who loves this country for what it stands

         23  for.  The government takes the same money from my

         24  paycheck every week.  I do not want the government

         25  telling me what rights I am or am not entitled to
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          2  because of whom I decide to spend my life with.

          3  Religious belief, cultural traditions, and myths are

          4  no excused for discrimination.

          5                 The couples that are registering to

          6  our upcoming Wedding Party Ceremony event on June

          7  30, the morning of Gay Pride, want full civil

          8  marriage rights.  That is why they are coming, to

          9  publicly commit themselves to each other, at least

         10  in a spiritual sense, and speaking up to say:  "Hey,

         11  I am just like you.  And I want and deserve the same

         12  rights as you.  Not special rights that set me apart

         13  from others.  I want the same rights and legal

         14  protections that you have so I too can care for my

         15  spouse and protect our children."

         16                 We need your support for full equal

         17  marriage rights, not special limited rights.  We

         18  must all aim higher.

         19

         20  Testimony of:

         21  Martine Barbier, MSW

         22  Clinical Manager, Domestic Violence and Sexual

         23  Assault

         24  New York City Gay and Lesbian Anti- Violence Project

         25
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          2                 First and foremost, I would like to

          3  thank Council Speaker Miller and the members of the

          4  City Council in providing this opportunity to

          5  address issues brought forth by proposed Intro. No.

          6  114- A.  Additionally, I would like to thank the

          7  Council members for their recognition of this

          8  concern as it affects the gay and lesbian community

          9  in the spirit of Gay Pride month.

         10                 My name is Martine Barbier, Clinical

         11  Manager of Domestic Violence and Sexual Assault, and

         12  I am here as a representative of the New York City

         13  Gay and Lesbian Anti- Violence Project, or AVP.

         14                 AVP is the nation's crime- victim

         15  service agency for the lesbian, gay, transgender,

         16  bisexual, and HIV- affected communities.  For over

         17  21 years, AVP has provided counseling and advocacy

         18  for thousands of victims of bias- motivated

         19  violence, domestic violence, sexual assault, HIV-

         20  related violence, and police community relations.

         21  AVP has striven to educate the public about violence

         22  against or within our communities and works to

         23  reform public policies impacting all lesbian, gay,

         24  transgender, bisexual and HIV- affected people.

         25                 We continue to address these issues
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          2  in the context of inequities that members of our

          3  community face when seeking to obtain entitlements

          4  enjoyed by other groups.  I speak to you today in

          5  support of proposed Intro. No. 114- A, regarding the

          6  same- sex domestic partnerships and civil unions.

          7                 We, on behalf of same- sex couples in

          8  New York City, strongly urge the City Council to

          9  look favorably upon the civil rights of gay and

         10  lesbian couples who have lawfully entered same sex

         11  domestic partnership or civil unions in New York and

         12  elsewhere. We believe that same- sex couples who

         13  have entered a domestic partnership or civil union

         14  should enjoy all rights and benefits issued to

         15  heterosexual married couples and we urge that you

         16  move this local law into effect immediately.

         17                 New York City provides domestic

         18  partnership as an option for the recognition of

         19  relationships, but this recognition has no bearing

         20  when it comes to taxes, inheritance, property

         21  rights, or spousal immunity.  The Domestic Partner

         22  Registry does recognize persons as "spouses" in New

         23  York City, however, we are well aware that

         24  entitlements disbursed by cities in general do not

         25  rise to the magnitude of those issued by the states
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          2  or the federal government.

          3                 The Fuller Faith and Credit Clause of

          4  the United States Constitution requires that all

          5  states must recognize legally binding lawsuit in

          6  other states.  This includes "public acts, records

          7  and judicial proceedings," which would encompass

          8  marriage. Thanks to this clause, married couples do

          9  not need to re- marry every time they travel to

         10  another state.  However, this clause is often

         11  violated from state- to- state and jurisdiction as

         12  it related to domestic partnerships or civil unions.

         13                 Domestic Partnership offers legal

         14  recognition of same- sex unions permitting some

         15  access to additional medical coverage depending on

         16  the employer, some bereavement rights and limited

         17  validation of joint ownership of property.  It

         18  ensures visitation rights in hospitals, or in

         19  prisons, and in court, it can be placed in evidence

         20  to third parties such as employers, or a health

         21  club, but it is not legally binding.  Such benefits

         22  would not be afforded to those who are now residing

         23  in New York, but were registered in another state.

         24  Again, the issue that we are dealing with are the

         25  inequities faced by persons who are under domestic
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          2  partnership, many of whom are same sex couples, as

          3  opposed to those who are married, male and female.

          4                 Although, domestic partnership has

          5  increasingly become as much a symbol of commitment

          6  as a tool to access the legal protections and rights

          7  embodied in this commitment, it does not provide the

          8  same rights as marriage.  Yet, its entitlements are

          9  in fact critical for same- sex couples.  At AVP

         10  where we work with victims of domestic violence, we

         11  encounter the importance the recognition of domestic

         12  partnership would provide to same- sex couples, if

         13  it were acknowledged in Family Court.  Married

         14  domestic violence victims only need present their

         15  fear for their safety in Family Court to access an

         16  Order of Protection.  While in stark contrast their

         17  same- sex counterparts must suffer a felony level

         18  assault to qualify for a civil order of protection

         19  through Criminal Court.

         20                 In the aftermath of September 11th,

         21  the inequities we face were compounded as we sought

         22  assistance for our clients from Emergency Relief

         23  Agencies whose definition of a committed

         24  relationship posed numerous barriers to accessing

         25  much needed financial support for surviving
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          2  partners.  Without a marriage certificate, their

          3  relationships did not exist or matter.

          4                 In 1998, the Council passed the New

          5  York City Domestic Partnership Law.  We at AVP want

          6  to strongly emphasize that there simply is no

          7  guarantee that the Mayoral Executive Order will

          8  continue to maintain the rights and entitlements of

          9  domestic partnership as it has in the past.  This

         10  places same sex partnerships in precarious positions

         11  as it may affect their lives and livelihood.

         12  Domestic partnership for same- sex couples may

         13  provide some support and respect, but it only offers

         14  a limited number of rights.  It more often provides

         15   "symbolic" support for people who love each other,

         16  and choose to commit themselves to one another.  It

         17  falls sadly short of the mark in affording same- sex

         18  couples the real life benefits automatically given

         19  to married spouses.

         20                 Overall, New York City has attempted

         21  to give those eligible for domestic partnership as

         22  many of the rights and protections available to

         23  married people, and we encourage these attempts to

         24  be continued and expanded.  Furthermore, passing

         25  this local law would be both a symbolic and real
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          2  step in continuing New York City's commitment to

          3  providing as much support as it can in regard to

          4  same- sex issues.  Your decision on this proposed

          5  bill will affect the lives of many New Yorkers.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 (Hearing concluded at 12:25 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, a Notary Public in

         10  and for the State of New York, do hereby certify

         11  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         12  of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 25th day of June 2002.
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                                   ---------------------

         24                          PAT WTULICH
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          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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